PC-AAA-614 un 92313

South African Information Exchange Working Paper Number 25

The U.S. Independent Sector as it relates to South African Initiatives: A Directory

Ann McKinstry Micou June 1993

INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION 809 UNITED NATIONS PLAZA NEW YORK, NY 10017-3580

The South African Information Exchange gratefully acknowledges
the financial assistance in 1992-1993 of
The Andrew W. Mellon Foundation,
an Anonymous Donor,
The Charles Stewart Mott Foundation,
The Ford Foundation,
The Genesis Foundation,
The Patrick and Anna Cudahy Fund
and The W.K. Kellogg Foundation.

Xilin

The U.S. Independent Sector as it Relates to South African Initiatives

INTRODUCTION

Purposes of this volume

This publication provides a map of the activities of the U.S. independent (or nongovernmental) sector as it relates to South Africa. It shows the capabilities of organizations in this sector and their relationships with their partners or offices in South Africa. The publication's purposes are twofold. It hopes 1) to promote networking and sharing of information and 2) to increase effectiveness of development initiatives in--or about--South Africa, based on a common knowledge base of financial and technical resources.

Background

The South African Information Exchange (SAIE) is a privately funded project of the Institute of International Education (IIE) in New York. The IIE is the oldest, largest, international educational exchange institution in the United States. Among the programs that it administers are the Fulbright student scholarships and the South African Education Program (SAEP) scholarships. The latter, jointly with the Johannesburg-based Educational Opportunities Council, has provided advanced study in the United States for black South Africans since 1979.

The SAIE, created in 1986, has researched, published, and disseminated 24 publications in the almost seven years that it has been active in democratizing access to information about South Africa-related resources. Used by both grant-makers and grant-seekers, these directories promote responsible funding applications, create networking opportunities, reduce duplication and waste of scarce resources, and further the sharing of expertise, ideas, and experience. (Editions in print are listed on the back cover.)

This year, the SAIE has devoted itself to two new volumes. They consolidate all the information it has collected in its database over the years and are a culmination of its efforts. This one presents the various components of the U.S independent sector that are engaged in some way in South Africa-related initiatives. The other, a companion piece due in August 1993, will provide brief, clarifying information on the donor community in South Africa. Over the life of the project we have looked at various U.S. constituencies—and at South African donors—piecemeal. These two volumes are the largest single directories we have ever attempted.

Methodology

First, what were the criteria for choosing the targets for this U.S. survey? It was to represent the range of entities making up the independent sector in the United States supporting South Africa-related initiatives. We used the names of all the people who have been added to our database over the years--through requests for information about South Africa or for our publications, participants' lists at South Africa-related conferences and workshops, annual reports of funders, referrals by colleagues in the U.S. and elsewhere, and, most significantly, all the respondents identified for previous U.S. surveys. It is essential to note that the organizations in our database are not all funders, but diverse members of the U.S. nongovernmental sector.

We wrote personal letters to over 1,000 individuals in our database coded as representing different kinds of nongovernmental organizations, including the corporate social responsibility

offices of corporations. Our sole mechanism for updating the information in our database is to rely on those persons who receive our periodic mailings (three or four a year) to send us changes and deletions. This rarely happens, and so the data becomes outmoded very quickly.

To accommodate in one volume all of the information we were seeking, the format of the request had to be brief. The one-page questionnaire that we sent is reproduced here:

Questionnaire Please circle type of organization: Foundation Private and voluntary organization (PVO) University Trade union (or trade union service organization) Religious organization U.S. support organization (501(c)(3) Advocacy group Research/public policy/professional group Corporation Other (please specify) Please specify main areas of program interest or program funding (if applicable) in priority order: 1. Please specify any area that you do not/cannot fund (if applicable): Please list trustees (and affiliations, if appropriate): Please indicate the size of your organization's budget in relation to South African initiatives: under \$100,000 ____\$100,00 to \$500,000 ____ over \$500,000 Please give contact information for your organization: Name/title: Organisation: Address: Tel: Fax:

It was difficult to design a single form, easy to complete, for soliciting information from the various constituencies in our database, given their disparate purposes. The definitions for "type of organization," for example, are overlapping and often duplicative.

If you have an office or partner organization in South Africa, give contact information:

In using the word "foundation" without refining it, we raised some definitional questions. In lay terms, there are two subsets of 501(c)(3) organizations (designated thus by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service) that can receive tax deductible donations from the public--private foundations and public foundations. A "private" foundation receives its support from one or a small number of significant donors and is subject to many restrictions (e.g., it pays tax on its investment income); a "public" foundation has broad support from many different donors, none of which gives so much or is so big as to stand out from the rest. (For further information on legal and tax questions: Jack Janetatos, Baker & McKenzie, 815 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.,

Washington, DC 20006, tel. 202 452 7006; fax. 202 452 7074.)

In the process of trying to define and delimit the different constituencies in the United States, we divided the public foundations into two further subsets: "private and voluntary organizations (PVOs)" and "U.S. support organizations." In our working definition, the former are, typically, nonprofit development agencies that offer technical assistance to NGOs in third world countries, often with the financial support of USAID; the latter are, typically, incorporated for charitable or educational purposes in the United States to raise funds for foreign charities that are the equivalent of 501(c)(3)s.

Soliciting information from the universities on our mailing list raised some additional complexities. We were trying to identify some nontraditional models of cooperation--e.g., institutional linkages--beyond scholarships. Many of the universities in our database participate in IIE's South African Education Program and are listed as such in the IIE SAEP brochure printed annually. Some of those institutions did return our questionnaire, but the number of SAEP-participants in this volume does not reflect the total.

Providing the question "does not fund" was important for two reasons: to allow those organizations that are not funders to so stipulate and to enable funders to protect themselves from inappropriate requests and applications. This directory is in no way a "shopping list" nor a mailing list for scatter-shot fundraising campaigns.

Results

The first mailing of letters and questionnaires in the late fall of 1992 elicited about 100 positive and about as many negative responses. The reasons given for the respondents not wishing to participate were as follows:

Those who wished to stay on the mailing list but were not willing or felt it was not appropriate to participate (14); wished to be removed from the mailing list because are no longer involved or already received too much mail or otherwise found it irrelevant (13); did not wish to be listed but didn't specify removal from list (7); are planning involvement but are not active yet or are reviewing program goals (6); thought the request was only for funders or otherwise misunderstood purpose (5); interpreted the letter as a request for funds (4); have no operations/programming in SA (4); already participate in the SAEP (3); their SA affiliate does social responsibility programming (3); rarely fund and do not want to raise expectations (2); do no international grantmaking (2); do not accept unsolicited proposals (1); does not want to be inundated with unnecessary paperwork (1); SA program is defunct for lack of funds (1); and envelope returned (1).

We sent a follow-up mailing in February 1993 to all those who had not yet responded, including a draft table of contents of current respondents by organizational type, and received another 60 or so positive responses. The final sweep was done by telephone, through which personal contact we elicited another 90 or so completed questionnaires, as well as a great deal of new information for our database about changes in personnel, addresses, and telephone/fax numbers. Many of the people to whom we had regularly been sending copies of our publications were no longer at the organization.

The breakdown of types of organizations represented in the total of 249 participants is:

Universities/colleges (52); U.S. support organizations (49);

- Private and voluntary organizations (44);
- Private foundations (21);
- Churches (20)
- Advocacy groups (16);
- Research/public policy/professional organizations (15);
- Corporations (11);
- Public foundations (9);
- Media groups (6);
- Company-sponsored foundations (4);
- Trade unions/trade union-related (2).

The financial statistics that emerged should be interpreted with caution, since many of the institutions listed in the directory derive their funds from other organizations also listed therein. For annual budget figures related to South African activities, the amounts given total a roughly estimated \$44,700,000. Thirty-nine organizations did not answer this question. The breakdown is as follows:

- Under \$100,000 138 organizations at about \$75,000 each or about \$10,350,000; \$100,000 to 500,000 41 organizations at about \$350,000 each or about \$14,350,000;

Over \$500,000 30 organizations or well over \$15,000,000;

- \$5,000,000 1 organization or \$5,000,000.

A detailed subject index offers a guide to about 70 main program areas in which participants are involved (and hundreds of subheadings; e.g., the heading "Education" has about 65 subheadings). There is also a glossary to help readers with some of the unfamiliar acronyms.

Conclusions

In what we consider the most interesting and helpful aspect of the directory, we found that, of the 249 respondents, 110 have at least one office or partner in South Africa. This is surely a statistic that would not have been true even a year ago.

The information contained in this directory will soon be "on line" in South Africa, available through the Southern Africa Nongovernmental Network (SANGONet), which represents a merger between WorkNet and the Development Resources Centre (DRC) in South Africa. Individuals wishing to learn more about SANGONet may get in touch with the South African Information Exchange in New York or with the DRC (P.O. Box 6079, Johannesburg 2000, tel. 011 838 7504; fax. 011 838 6310).

We are aware that there are omissions in this directory. These omissions are both inadvertent and inescapable in such a project, where maintaining a constantly evolving database of this size is a challenge. We deeply regret any omissions. The fact that we had to elicit the final information for this directory by telephone might be a sign of lack of interest on the part of some respondents or due to mail and faxes not being received. More likely, the explanation lies in the heavy workload and travel schedules of people engaged in international development activities and we are grateful to those who took the time to cooperate.

While a directory of this kind could never be considered "complete," we hope it will serve to bring together parties committed to development and social justice in South Africa who would otherwise not have found each other.



Table of Contents

	Page
Directory	
Advocacy groups	
Africa Faith and Justice Network	1
American Business Initiative for a Free South Africa (ABIFSA)	1
American Committee on Africa	1
American Friends Service Committee	2
Bay Area Anti-Apartheid Network	2
Educators Against Racism and Apartheid	2
Episcopal Churchpeople for a Free Southern Africa	2
Koinonia Southern Africa	3
Lawyers Committee for Human Rights	3 3
South Africa Human Rights Campaign South African Women Artists in Resistance	<i>3</i> 4
TEAMWORKSouth Africa	4
TransAfrica	4
U.N. Subcommittee on Southern Africa NGO Committee on Human Rights (N.Y.)	5
U.S. Committee for Refugees	5
Washington Office on Africa	5
washington office on finite	3
Church groups/religious organizations	
Baptist World Alliance	6
Christian Peace Conference	6
Church of the Heavenly Rest	6
Episcopal Church USA	7
First Baptist Church Capitol Hill	7
Interfaith Center for Corporate Responsibility (ICCR)	7
Lutheran ChurchMissouri Synod	7
National Council of Churches	8
National Jewish Community Relations Advisory Council	8
New York/Klerksdorp Companion Diocese Committee	8
Presiding Bishop's Fund for World Relief	9
Prison Fellowship International	9
Progressive National Baptist Convention, Inc.	9
Riverside Church	9
Southern Africa Education Program	10
St. James' Church	10
Prinity Grants Program	10 10
United Church of Christ and Disciples of Christ U.S. Office of the World Council of Churches (WCC)	10
World Conference on Religion and Peace (WCRP)	11
world Contelence on Rengion and Feace (WCRF)	11

Company-sponsored foundations

Boston Globe Foundation	12
Coca-Cola Foundation	12
Cummins Engine Foundation	12
Reebok Foundation	12
Corporations	
<u> </u>	
Aetna Life & Casualty	13
African Development Group	13
BP America	13
Cash Partners International	14
Citibank	14
Colgate-Palmolive Company	14
Ecumenical Development Corporation, USA	14
Estee Lauder International, Inc.	15
IBM	15
J.P. Morgan & Co.	16
Schering-Plough Corporation and Foundation	16
Media groups	
Africa News Service	
Africa Today Associates (University of Denver)	16
California Newsreel	16
Children's Television Workshop	17
National Public Radio (NPR)	17 17
Worldwide Documentaries, Inc.	17
	10
Private foundations	
Albert Viscos Is B. H. B. Lie	
Albert Kunstadter Family Foundation Andrew W. Mellon Foundation	18
	18
Carnegie Corporation of New York Charles Stewart Mott Foundation	18
Ford Foundation	19
Genesis Foundation	19
Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation	19
Institute of Current World Affairs Crane-Rogers Foundation	19
International Foundation	20
J. Roderick MacArthur Foundation	20
McKnight Foundation	20 21
New Prospect Foundation	21 21
New World Foundation	21
Patrick and Anna Cudahy Fund	21
Peace Development Fund	221
Rockefeller Brothers Fund	22
Rockefeller Foundation	22
South Coast Foundation	22

Stewardship Foundation William and Flora Hewlett Foundation W.K. Kellogg Foundation	22 23 23
Private and voluntary organizations (PVOS)	
Academy for Educational Development (AED)	23
African-American Institute (AAI)	24
African Medical and Research Foundation (AMREF)	24
AFRICARE	25
American Council on Education (ACE)	25
American ORT Federation	25
American Psychological Association (APA)	26
American Red Cross International Services	26
America's Development Foundation	26
Aurora Associates South African Higher Education Program	26
CARE, Inc.	27
Catholic Relief Services (CRS)	27
Center for Public Justice	28
Center for Racial Equality and Democratic Opportunity, Inc. (CREDO)	28
Clergy and Laity Concerned	28
Community Development Institute	28
Council for International Exchange of Scholars (CIES)	29
Council of International Programs (CIP)	29
Global Future Links	29
Goodwill Industries of America (Inc.)	30
Institute of International Education (IIE)	30
International Book Bank, Inc. (IBB)	30
International Catholic Migration Commission (ICMC)	31
International Student Exchange Program	31
International Voluntary Services (IVS)	31
International Wilderness Leadership (WILD) Foundation	32
Intersect	32
Iowa South African Scholarships, Inc. (ISASI)	32
Mobility International USA	33
National Council of Negro Women	33
Open Door Student Exchange	33
Partners for International Education and Training (PIET)	33
Population Services International (PSI)	34
Private Agencies Collaborating Together (PACT)	34
Salesian Missions	34
Save the Children	34
Sister Cities International	35
Synergos Institute	35
Syosset International	35
United Way International	36
World Education	36
World Vision B. I. G. and B. and Grand D.	36
World Vision Relief and Development (WVRD)	37
YMCA of the USA	37



Public Foundations

Cape of Good Hope Foundation Education Fund for Southern Africa	38 38
Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA)	38
Funding Exchange	39
Global Fund for Women	39
Grassroots International	39
Phelps-Stokes Fund	39
South Africa Education Fund, Inc.	40
Tides Foundation	40
Research, public policy, and professional groups	
American Association for the Advancement of Science	40
American Bar Association Fund for Justice and Education	40
American Chemical Society (ACS)	41
Aspen Institute Congressional International Program Association of Episcopal Colleges	41
Carnegie Council on Ethics and International Affairs	41 42
CDR Associates	42
Educational Testing Service (ETS)	42
Fairchilde International Library Institute (FILI)	42
Institute on Religion and Democracy (IRD)	43
International Institutes on Peace Education	43
Investor Responsibility Research Center (IRRC) South Africa Review Service Museum Research Associates	43
Research Triangle Institute	44
World Council for Curriculum and Instruction (WCCI)	44 44
week countries carridation and instruction (week)	74
Trade unions/trade union-related service organizations	
African-American Labor Center	45
United Mine Workers of America	45
Universities/colleges	
Boston College	45
Bradley University Brown University	45
Clark Atlanta University	45
Clark University Task Force for Sustainable Development in Africa	46 46
College of Wooster	46
Consortium for International Development (CID)	46
Cornell University	47
Hamilton College	47
Hartford Seminary	47
Harvard Graduate School of Education Harvard School of Public Health	47
Harvard/South Africa Fellowship Program (HSAFP)	48



Indiana University	48
Iowa State University	48
John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University	49
Lafayette College	49
Luther College	49
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)	49
Miami University	50
Michigan State University African Studies Center	50
Mills College	50
Morehouse College	50
Northwestern University	51
Ohio State University	51
Ohio University Center for International Studies	51
Pratt Institute Center for Community and Environmental Development (PICCED	51
Princeton University Population Polytochric Institute	52
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute Rutgers University	52
School for International Training (SIT)	52
Smith College	52
Southern Methodist University School of Law	53 53
Stanford University	53
State University of New York	53
ThunderbirdThe American Graduate School of International Management	54
Tucker Foundation, Dartmouth College	54
United States International University	54
University of California at Berkeley (UCB)	54
University of California at Los Angeles (UCLA)	55
University of Connecticut	55
University of Delaware	55
University of Hartford	55
University of Illinois	55
University of Iowa	56
University of Michigan South Africa Initiative	56
University of Missouri System	56
University of Missouri-Kansas City	57
University of Notre Dame	57
University of Notre Dame Law School, Center for Civil and Human Rights	57
Vanderbilt University	58
Yale University Southern African Research Program (SARP)	58
U.S. support organizations501(c)(3)s	
Africa Enterprise	58
Africa Fund	58
African Arts Fund	59
African Medical Mission	59
American Friends of NEST, Inc.	59
American Working Theatre	60
Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop (ABLWW)	60
Ashoka: Innovators for the Public	60
Association for International Practical Training (AIPT)	61
Committee of Concerned Scientists Inc.	61

Committee for Health in Southern Africa (CHISA)	61
Conflict Management Group (CMG)	62
Conflict Management Initiatives	62
Creative Response	62
Friends of IDASA	63
Friends of SOS Children's Villages Inc.	63
Fund for Education in South Africa (FESA)	64
Get Ahead Foundation USA	64
G.U. Volunteers in South Africa	64
Independent School South African Education Program (ISSAEP)	65
International Women's Media Foundation	65
Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law	65
Mandela Freedom Fund	66
Medical Education for South African Blacks (MESAB)	66
Medical University of Southern Africa (MEDUNSA) Trust	66
National Democratic Institute for International Affairs	67
National Endowment for Democracy (NED)	67
Operation Hunger, Inc.	67
Organization of South African Americans and Canadians, Inc. (OSAAC)	68
Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries of South Africa	68
Samancor Foundation USA	68
Sisterhood in Support of Sisters in South Africa	69
South African Black Business Development Foundation, Inc.	69
South African Rural Development Support Program, Inc.	69
Southern Africa Freedom Through Education (SAFTE)	69
Southern Africa Legal Services and Legal Education Project, Inc. (SALSLEP)	70
St. Barnabas College Fund, Inc.	70
Transkei Foundation	70
Unitarian Universalist Service Committee (UUSC)	71
University of Cape Town Fund (UCT Fund Inc.)	71
University Scholarships for South African Students (USSAS)	71
Urban Foundation (USA) Inc.	72
U.S. Committee for UNICEF (The United Nations Children's Fund)	72
U.S. Fund for Leadership Training in Southern Africa	73
U.SSouth Africa Leadership Development Program	73
U.SSouth Africa Sister Community Project	73
US/Zululand Educational Foundation, Inc.	74
World Neighbors WorldTeach, Inc.	74
world leach, inc.	74
Subject Index	77
List of participating organizations alphabetically	83
Glossary	89

DIRECTORY

Advocacy groups

Africa Faith and Justice Network

Main areas of interest: Education of the U.S. public on U.S. policies having a negative

impact on Africa and African people; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Sister Maura Browne

Africa Faith and Justice Network

401 Michigan Avenue N.E., Washington, DC 20017

Tel. 202 832 3412; Fax. 202 832 9051

American Business Initiative for a Free South Africa (ABIFSA)

Main areas of interest: U.S. business support for sanctions and establishment of support for nonracial, democratic South Africa; facilitating U.S. support for South African business people of color; humanitarian assistance to townships and squatter camps; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: C. Joseph LaBonte (President and Founder); Colette A.M. Phillips (Vice

President); Donna M. LaBonte (Treasurer);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: ABIFSA has established relationships with a number of South African

organizations in support of its stated mission

Contact: Ms. Colette Phillips

American Business Initiative for a Free South Africa 41 Colbourne Road, Suite B-2, Brighton, MA 02135

Tel. 617 782 3380; Fax. 617 782 9346

American Committee on Africa

Main areas of interest: Support for sanctions and divestment movement in regard to U.S. money in South Africa; lobby for better U.S. policy towards South Africa and the region; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Executive Board: William Booth (President); Wyatt Tee Walker (Vice President); David Scott (Vice President); Frederick Williams (Treasurer); Dorothy Hibbert (Secretary); Owen Bieber; Elombe Brath; Josephine Buck-Jones; Imani Countess; Ralston Deffenbaugh, Jr.; Jerry Herman; Stanley Hill; M. Wm. Howard; Elizabeth Landis, Tilden J. LeMelle; Aubrey McCutcheon; Jean Sindab; Timothy Smith; Doreen Tilghman; Stephanie Urdang; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Jennifer Davis, Executive Director

American Committee on Africa 198 Broadway, New York, NY 10038 Tel. 212 962 1210; Fax. 212 964 8570

American Friends Service Committee

Main areas of interest: Peace education among U.S. constituencies regarding issues of justice and peace in southern Africa; development programs in Mozambique and interest in southern African region;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Jerry Herman, Coordinator

> Southern Africa Program, Peace Education Division Ms. Mary Massaro, Coordinator, Africa Programs

International Division, American Friends Service Committee

1501 Cherry Street, Philadelphia, PA 19102 Tel. 215 241 7157; Fax. 215 241 7026

Bay Area Anti-Apartheid Network

Main areas of interest: Brings together anti-apartheid, anti-racist, and southern Africa solidarity groups to advance and promote the work of member organizations through collaboration and collective support;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency:

Members: About 30 solidarity, labor, church, cultural, and educational organizations;

Size of budget relating to SA activities:

Contact: Mr. Nesbit Crutchfield, Co-Chairperson

Bay Area Anti-Apartheid Network P.O. Box 98, Oakland, CA 94604 Tel. 510 652 9905; Fax. 510 655 7440

Educators Against Racism and Apartheid

Main areas of interest: Education and action to end apartheid--among U.S. educators and

students; support for the African National Congress and other democratic forces;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Paula Rogovin Bower

> Educators Against Racism and Apartheid 164-04 Goethals Avenue, Jamaica, NY 11432

Tel. 201 836 6644

Episcopal Churchpeople for a Free Southern Africa

Main areas of interest: Keeping people up-to-date on developments in Southern Africa;

small projects;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Bill Johnston, President

Episcopal Churchpeople for a Free Southern Africa

339 Lafayette Street, New York, NY 10012

Tel. 212 477 0066; Fax. 212 979 1013

Koinonia Southern Africa

Main areas of interest: Support for Koinonia Southern Africa by receiving and transmitting donations specifically designated for that program or for individuals working in that program; mail out Koinonia SA's newsletter to interested individuals in the U.S.; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: St. Andrews' Presbyterian Church, whose mission focus this program is; Size of budget relating to SA activities: No budget; Church underwrites office expenses.

Office in SA: Mr. Barry Poppleton, Coordinator

Koinonia Southern Africa

P.O. Box 62364, Marshalltown 2107

Contact: Ms. Mona Wise, Coordinator

Koinonia Southern Africa

4575 Auhay Drive, Santa Barbara, CA 93110

Tel. 805 967 6327; Fax. 805 967 9530

Lawyers Committee for Human Rights

Main areas of interest: Administration of justice, promoting respect and adherence to International Bill of Rights; strengthening local human rights groups and legal structures working on civil and political human rights issues;

Does not fund: Not a funding organization, but works with local organizations and applies for funding with them;

Trustees: Marvin Frankel, Chairman of the Board; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000

Office in SA: Works with a number of organizations in South Africa on an informal basis;

among them. Lawyers for Human Rights, Human Rights Commission, Legal

Resources Foundation.

Contact: Mr. Adotei Akwei

Lawyers Committee for Human Rights

330 7th Avenue, 19th floor, New York, NY 10001 Tel. 212 629 6170, ext. 65; Fax. 212 967 0916

South Africa Human Rights Campaign

Main areas of interest: Exploring building a sister-community relationship between Boston

and Wattville;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Well under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Wattville Concerned Residents Committee

c / o Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA)

P.O. Box 31320, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 291 854; Fax. 011 290 121 Contact: Ms. Lee Farris

South Africa Human Rights Campaign 77 Elm Street, Cambridge, MA 02139

Tel. 617 354 6740

South African Women Artists in Resistance

Main areas of interest: Promotes collaboration between American and South African artists, as in the exhibition "South African Mail: Messages from Inside," which reflects the life circumstances, hopes, and dreams of over 200 South African women of all races and is available to museums, galleries, and cultural organizations (catalogue available); Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Janet Goldner

South African Women Artists in Resistance 52 Warren Street, New York, NY 10007

Tel. 212 766 1910

TEAMWORK--South Africa

Main areas of interest: Improvement of racial relations using sports as a catalyst; sports development and assistance benefitting the disadvantaged regions;

Affiliations: National Olympic Committee of South Africa (NOCSA); National and Olympic Sports Congress (NOSC) SA; National Basketball Association (NBA) USA;

National Basketball Players Association (NBPA) USA; National Consortium for Academics and Sports USA:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000 (potentially).

Partner in SA: Mr. Sam Ramsamy, President

National Olympic Committee of South Africa (NOCSA)

P.O. Box 1355, Houghton 2041

Contact: Dr. Richard Lapchick, Director, CSSS

Mr. Adekunle Raji, Project Director

TEAMWORK--South Africa

Center for the Study of Sport in Society (CSSS), Northeastern University

360 Huntington Avenue, Suite 161 CP, Boston, MA 02115

Tel. 617 437 4025; Fax. 617 437 4566

TransAfrica

Main areas of interest: Monitoring U.S. policy towards South Africa; disseminating information to the general public on Africa and the Caribbean through its educational affiliate, TransAfrica Forum;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency:

Trustees: Richard Gordon Hatcher (Chairman);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Randall Robinson, Executive Director

TransAfrica

1744 R Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20009

U.N. Subcommittee on Southern Africa NGO Committee on Human Rights (N.Y.)

Main areas of interest: Hastening the demise of apartheid in order to help establish a united, nonracial, nonsexist democratic society pursuing peace and human rights in southern Africa;

Affiliations: As an NGO Committee, it cannot make any statement unless each organization signs on; among its active members are Women's International League for Peace and Freedom; Women's International Democratic Federation; Lutheran Federation for World Community; Sisters Against South African Apartheid; World Federation of Trade Unions; Anglican Community; Episcopal Mission Society; Unitarian Universalist Association; International Federation of Social Workers; United Methodist Women; Voice of Women (Canada); National Baptist Convention of the USA Inc; International Institute of Rural Reconstruction; Brooklyn Truth Center; National Conference of Black Lawyers; Interfaith Center for Corporate Responsibility; The Links Inc.; Bellevue Hospital Coalition Against Apartheid; Women for Racial and Economic Equality; United Nations Association (U.K.); Anglican Consultative Council; Mozambique Solidarity Office; For Our Children's Sake, Inc.; Pan African Human Rights, Inc.; and Christian Peace Conference; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Vinie Burrows, Chair Person

U.N. Subcommittee on Southern Africa NGO Committee on Human Rights

63 Avenue "A" #19i, New York, NY 10009 Tel. 212 677 4667: Fax. 212 808 5480

U.S. Committee for Refugees

Main areas of interest: Monitoring;

Trustee Officers: Edward B. Marks (Chairman); Herbert Chaice (President); Joey Mitchell-Jablons Vice President); Lawrence Rosenthal (Vice President); Harriet Greenfield (Treasurer); Wayne Dale Collins (Secretary); James McElroy (Assistant Treasurer); Christine P. Gaffney (Assistant Secretary); Wells Klein, (Executive Director); Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Mr. Roger Winter, Director U.S. Committee for Refugees 1025 Vermont Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20005 Tel. 202 347 3507; Fax. 202 347 3418

Washington Office on Africa

Main areas of interest: Seeks to influence U.S. foreign policy and promote African and U.S. grassroots agendas; specific interests with regard to South Africa revolve around aid to a post-apartheid South African government;.

Does not fund: It is funded by church denominations and trade unions and is not a funding agency;

Sponsors: African Methodist Episcopal Church; Amalgamated Clothing & Textile Workers Union; American Committee on Africa; Christian Church Disciples of Christ; Church of the Brethren; Episcopal Church; Evangelical Lutheran Church in America; Maryknoll; Missionaries of Africa; Presbyterian Church (USA); Progressive National Baptist

Convention; Reformed Church in America; Sacred Heart Fathers; Society of African Missions; United Auto Workers; United Church of Chirist; United Methodist Church; United Steelworkers;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Kristen Lee, Executive Assistant

Washington Office on Africa

110 Maryland Avenue, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20002

Tel. 202 546 7961; Fax. 202 546 1545

Church groups/religious organizations

Baptist World Alliance

Main areas of interest: Relief and rehabilitation; development;

Does not fund: Personal scholarships; Trustees: Baptist World Alliance;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Baptist Convention of Southern Africa

Baptist Union of Southern Africa

Contact: Mr. Paul Montacute, Director, Baptist World Aid

Baptist World Alliance

6733 Curran Street, McLean, VA 22101 Tel. 703 790 8980; Fax. 703 893 5160

Christian Peace Conference

Main areas of interest: Anti-apartheid movements and democratic organizations especially, but not exclusively, church-related agencies or church-supported entities; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Philip Oke, Director

Christian Peace Conference

777 United Nations Plaza, Room 1, New York, NY 10017-3521

Tel. 516 223 1880; Fax. 516 223 1880

Church of the Heavenly Rest

Main areas of interest: Link parish (St. Mary's, Christiana, Transvaal); companion diocese

(Anglican Diocese of Klerksdorp);

Does not fund: Nothing other than the above through 1998;

Affiliations: Diocese of New York's Companion Diocese Committee; Africa Funder's

Group of the Trinity Grants Program;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: South Africa Committee

Church of the Heavenly Rest

2 East 90th Street, New York, NY 10128

Tel. 212 289 3400; Fax. 212 534 8460

Episcopal Church USA

Main areas of interest: Dioceses and donor agencies set their own priorities in consultation with CPSA (Anglican) officials (for the worldwide support breakdown, contact the Episcopal Mission Resource Information Service--EMRiS--at 74 Trinity Place, New York 1006-2088, 212 602 0710, for its "Directory of Funders and 1991 Grants"); Does not fund: Requests must be approved by the CPSA and signed by a Bishop or else they may not be approved for funding; Size of budget related to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Partner in SA: The Most Reverend Desmond Tutu

Church of the Province of Southern Africa (CPSA)

Bishopscourt, Claremont 7700

Tel. 021 761 2531

Contact: Ms. Diane Porter, Senior Executive for Program

Episcopal Church USA

815 Second Avenue, New York, NY 10017 Tel. 212 867 8400; Fax. 212 972 9322

First Baptist Church Capitol Hill South African Task Force

Main areas of interest: Peace awards; education of medical professionals;

Does not fund: Those seeking start-up funds; Trustees: First Baptist Church Capitol Hill;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Rev. R.I. Kwame A'Bass, South African Task Force

First Baptist Church Capitol Hill 900 James Robertson Parkway

Nashville, TN 37203 Tel. 615 255 8757

Interfaith Center on Corporate Responsibility (ICCR)

Main areas of interest: Coordinating the work of religious institutional investors in

promoting corporate responsibility vis-à-vis South Africa;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Donna Katzin

Interfaith Center on Corporate Responsibility (ICCR)

475 Riverside Drive, New York, NY 10115 Tel. 212 870 2928; Fax. 021 870 2023

Lutheran Church--Missouri Synod

Main areas of interest: Education--training of church leaders; social ministry, especially famine relief;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: The Lutheran Church in Southern Africa

P.O. Box 11, Pomeroy 3020 Tel. 03425 637; Fax. 03425 638

Contact: Rev. Robert Roegner, Board for Mission Services

Lutheran Church--Missouri Synod

1333 South Kirkwood Road, St. Louis, MO 63122

Tel. 314 965 9917; Fax. 314 822 8307

National Council of Churches (NCC)

Main areas of interest: Development; advocacy;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Mr. Willis Logan, Director

National Council of Churches

475 Riverside Drive, Room 612, New York, NY 10115-0050

Tel. 212 870 2645; Fax. 212 870 2236

National Jewish Community Relations Advisory Council

Main areas of interest: Works on social and economic justice and civil rights and liberties issues both domestically and internationally; regarding South Africa, the focus is on helping to press the U.S. government to move the South African government towards full democracy and protection of all people:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency:

Affiliations: Eleven national agencies and 100 community agencies;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Consults regularly with Seymour Kopelowitz at the South African Board of

Jewish Deputies.

Contact: Ms. Diana Aviv, Associate Executive Vice Chair

National Jewish Community Relations Advisory Council 443 Park Avenue South, 11th floor, New York, NY 10016

Tel. 212 684 6950; Fax. 212 686 1353

New York/Klerksdorp Companion Diocese Committee

Main areas of interest: Leadership and community development; intergroup relations

(primarily religious and Anglican);

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; Trustees: Episcopal Diocese of New York:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: The Rt. Rev. David Nkwe

Anglican Diocese of Klerksdorp P.O. Box 11417, Klerksdorp 2570

Fax. 018 462 4939

Contact: The Rev. Canon Lloyd S. Casson, D.D.

New York / Klerksdorp Companion Diocese Committee

1047 Amsterdam Avenue, New York, NY 10025

Tel. 212 316 7412; Fax. 212 316 7405

Presiding Bishop's Fund for World Relief

Main areas of interest: Relief in disasters; rehabilitation after disasters; development as it relates to children--hunger, water, health issues;

Does not fund: Capital projects; bricks and mortar (new buildings; it does help repair

churches and schools);

Trustees: Board of Directors of the Presiding Bishop's Fund for World Relief;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Archbishop Desmond Tutu

Bishopscourt, Claremont 7700

Contact: Ms. Katerina K. Whitley, Public Relations Associate

Presiding Bishop's Fund for World Relief 815 Second Avenue, New York, NY 10017 Tel. 212 922 5138; Fax. 212 983 6377

Prison Fellowship International

Main areas of interest: Criminal justice reform/prison reform; treatment and

rehabilitation/reintegration of offenders:

Directors: Charles W. Colson (Chairman of Board);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Affiliation pending completion of negotiations.

Contact: Mr. Ronald W. Nikkel, President

Prison Fellowship International

P.O. Box 17434, Washington, DC 20041 Tel. 703 481 0000; Fax. 703 481 0003

Progressive National Baptist Convention, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Church missions; socially relevant projects and programs;

Does not fund: Partisan issues; conservative items; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: General Secretary

Progressive National Baptist Convention, Inc. 601 50th Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20019

Tel. 202 396 0558; Fax. 202 398 4998

Riverside Church

Main areas of interest: The Benevolence Committee funds advocacy, education, and community development programs in southern Africa; it also schedules speakers and

conferences on an ad hoc basis.

Contact: Mr. Erik Kolbell, Social Justice Office

Riverside Church

490 Riverside Drive, New York, NY 10027 Tel. 212 222 5900, ext 295; Fax. 212 316 9015

Southern Africa Education Program

Main areas of interest: Itinerating speakers; study tours to southern Africa; convocations; Does not fund: Not a funding agency; recommends projects for funding; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Rev. John Kenyon, Coordinator

Southern Africa Education Program

17 Crickettown Road, Stony Point, NY 10980

Tel. 914 786 5072; Fax. 914 786 5919

St. James' Church

Main areas of interest: Elementary, secondary, and vocational education in southern Africa, including Botswana, Lesotho, Malawi. Mozambique, Namibia, South Africa, Swaziland, and Zimbabwe, through the Anglican Communion; Trustees: Vestry of St. James' Church/New Ventures Committee; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Pamela Stebbins, Program and Grants Officer

St. James' Church New Ventures Committee 865 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10021 Tel. 212 288 4100; Fax. 212 650 0304

Trinity Grants Program

Main areas of interest: Justice and reconciliation programs; leadership training; communication;

Does not fund: Buildings; scholarships; endowments;

Trustees: The Rev. Daniel P. Matthews; Margaret E. Mahoney; Harry W. Havemeyer; Leonard S. Coleman, Jr.; Lorraine A. LaHuta; Minerva Bonds; Henry Samuel; Ray Allman; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: The Reverend Rowen Smith, Executive Officer

Church of the Province of Southern Africa, Bishopscourt, Claremont 7700

Contact: The Reverend James G. Callaway, Jr.

Trinity Grants Program

74 Trinity Place, New York, NY 10006 Tel. 212 602 0712; Fax. 212 602 0717

United Church of Christ and Disciples of Christ

Main areas of interest: Africa, anti-apartheid work; economic development; human rights;

Does not fund: Buildings; nonchurch-supported scholarships; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000-500,000.

Partner in SA: United Congregational Church of Southern Africa

P.O. Box 61305, Marshalltown 2107

South African Council of Churches P.O. Box 4921, Johannesburg 2000

Contact: Rev. Dr. Dan C. Hoffman, Joint Ministry in Africa Office

United Church of Christ and Disciples of Christ 475 Riverside Drive, 16th floor, New York, NY 10027

Tel. 212 870 2834; Fax. 212 932 1236

U.S. Office of the World Council of Churches (WCC)

Main areas of interest: Combatting racism; all work related to the churches;

Does not fund: U.S. office is not a funding agency; Affiliation: World Council of Churches in Geneva.

Partner in SA: Member churches of the World Council

South African Council of Churches

Contact: Ms. Jean Stromberg, Director

U.S. Office of the World Council of Churches (WCC) 475 Riverside Drive, Room 915, New York, NY 10115

Tel. 212 870 2533; Fax. 212 870 2528

World Conference on Religion and Peace (WCRP)

Main areas of interest: Human rights; racial equality; religious freedom; interfaith action; Trustees: Dr. William Vendley (Secretary General International); Archbishop Desmond Tutu (Honorary President);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Rev. Gerri Lubbe, President

M. Ujala Satgar, Secretary

World Conference on Religion and Peace (WCRP)
08 Piet Meyer Street, Mindalore, Krugersdorp 1740

Tel. 011 762 2938; Fax. 012 429 2925

Contact: Dr. William F. Vendley, Secretary General

World Conference on Religion and Peace (WCRP)

777 U.N. Plaza, New York, NY 10017 Tel. 212 687 2163; Fax. 212 983 0566

Company-sponsored foundations

Boston Globe Foundation

Main areas of interest: Community services; education; culture; health;

Does not fund: Individuals, international and any areas other than Boston, Cambridge, Somerville, Chelsea, and Billerica;

Trustees: William O. Taylor (President); John P. Giuggio; Catherine E.C. Henn (Clerk); George M. Collins, Jr.; Leslie "Skip" Griffin; Alexander B. Hawes, Jr. (Treasurer); Benjamin B. Taylor.

Contact: Mrs. Suzanne Watkin Maas or Mrs. Klare Shaw

Boston Globe Foundation

P.O. Box 2378, Boston, MA 02107-2378 Tel. 617 929 2895; Fax. 617 929 2041

Coca-Cola Foundation

Main areas of interest: Education and job training; economic development; Does **not** fund: Individuals; religious organizations or endeavors; political, legislative, lobbying, or fraternal organizations; organizations that do not have tax-exempt status under IRS 501(c)(3) or equivalent;

Trustees: Ingrid Saunders Jones (Chairperson); Donald R. Greene (President); Jack L. Stahl (Treasurer); Joseph W. Jones (Secretary); R. Michelle Beale; H. Richard Miller; R. Bruce Kirkman; Peter S. Sealey;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Mr. Donald R. Greene, President

Coca-Cola Foundation

Post Office Drawer 1734, Atlanta, GA 30301 Tel. 404 676 2568; Fax. 404 676 8804

Cummins Engine Foundation

Main areas of interest: Currently funding only three programs--the University of Cape Town (for scholarships); Southern Africa Legal Services and Legal Education Project; and the Urban Foundation;

Trustees: The top management of Cummins Engine Company; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Adele Vincent

Cummins Engine Foundation

Box 3005, MC 60014, Columbus, IN 47201 Tel. 812 377 3569; Fax. 812 377 3334

Reebok Foundation

Main areas of interest: While the Foundation reserves most of its grantmaking to benefit communities in which its employees reside, the annual Reebok Human Rights Award recognizes young people from around the world for their accomplishments on behalf of human rights.

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Four recipients are chosen each year to receive a \$25,000 grant to an organization of the recipient's choosing (the Award has gone to three South Africans).

Contact: Mr. Douglas Cahn, Director, Human Rights Programs

Reebok Foundation

100 Technology Center Drive, Stoughton, MA 02072

Tel. 617 341 5000; Fax. 617 341 5087

Corporations

Aetna Life & Casualty

Main areas of interest: Education; health;

Does not fund: Non-U.S. based organizations; has a very limited budget;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact Ms. Patricia Sheeran, Director

Aetna Casualty & Life

151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06156

Tel. 203 273 6377; Fax. 203 273 4764

African Development Group (ADG)

Main areas of interest: This private merchant bank promotes private direct foreign

investment in Africa;

Does not fund: It puts together financial packages for projects in which it is involved,

working for clients who pay ADG for its services.

Contact: Mr. P. Jay Fetner, Managing Partner

African Development Group

Georgetown Court, 3320 N Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20007

Tel. 202 638 0300; Fax. 202 638 0302

BP America

Main areas of interest: Education; community development; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: BP Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd.

BP Centre, No. 1 Thibault Square, Cape Town 8001

Attention: Mr. G.R. Barr

Contact: Mr. W.B. Doggett, Director, Communications and Community Relations

BP America

200 Public Square, Cleveland, OH 44124 Tel. 216 586 4141; Fax. 216 586 5593

Cash Partners International

Main areas of interest: Business packaging; technical and business training to facilitate/encourage economic development in partnership with local business person(s) in South Africa; business preparations to attract investors; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Lynda Garrison-Carlton, Chief Operating Officer

Cash Partners International

800 West 5th Avenue, Suite 108D, Naperville, IL 60563

Tel. 708 369 5782; Fax. 708 357 5750

Citibank

Main areas of interest: Educational programs, including business skills; social welfare

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Mr. Kenneth Campbell

Citibank

399 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10043 Tel. 212 559 0048; Fax. 212 793 4636

Colgate-Palmolive Company

Main areas of interest: Young people, education, health, and housing; Colgate provides minimal funding from within the U.S., since all of the Company's more than 100 community and social welfare programs are run and organized from within South Africa by the Company's subsidiary there, through Colgate Palmolive South Africa Foundation (a nonprofit foundation funded by Colgate-Palmolive South Africa);

Does not fund: The Company does not fund or support any organization worldwide, or in South Africa, that is politically motivated or organized;

Trustees: The Colgate-Palmolive Foundation in South Africa is a nonprofit organization directed by a Board of Trustees that comprises senior Colgate executives and independent outside nonwhite and white Trustees:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000 in the U.S.

Office in SA: Ms. Linda Rowell, The Colgate-Palmolive Foundation

Perlmeadow Office Park, 2nd floor, Block A.

60 Civin Drive, Bedfordview 2008 Tel. 011 453 1453; Fax. 011 453 2140

Contact: Mr. R. Gavin S. Anderson, Director Executive Services

Colgate-Palmolive Company

300 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10022 Tel. 212 310 3064; Fax. 212 310 3301

Ecumenical Development Corporation, USA

Main areas of interest: Makes loans to cooperative business ventures, which are or will be owned and operated by the poor themselves, in all kinds of businesses including

agriculture, fishing, mining, heavy industry, and crafts;

Does not fund: Will make loans in South Africa only when the SACC says it is time for reinvestment; does not make loans to individuals or the already well-to-do;

Trustees:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000 (average loan is for \$250,00, with a maximum of \$1 million and a minimum of \$100,000).

Office in SA: Ms. Valentina Ziswa

Project Development Officer for Southern Africa

Ecumenical Development Corporation P.O. Box 2340, Harare, Zimbabwe Tel. 263 4 702 247; Fax. 263 4 707 994

Contact: Mr. Elwyn Ewald, Executive Director

Ecumenical Development Corporation, USA

155 North Michigan Avenue, #627, Chicago, IL 60601

Tel. 312 938 0884; Fax. 312 861 0815

Estee Lauder International, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Community development on or near company Headquarters site; Assistance in housing, transportation, and education for employees and their children; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Ms. Magda Lategan

Horton Products Ltd.

P.O. Box 786132, Sandton 2146

Tel. 011 314 2354; Fax. 011 314 2218

Contact: Mr. Abbot H. Rudolph, Vice President, Human Resources

Estee Lauder International, Inc. 767 5th Avenue, New York, NY 10153 Tel. 212 572 6990; Fax. 212 572 4327

IBM

Main areas of interest: Education--all levels, current focus in areas of math and science, and education technology to improve educational opportunities for black South Africans; economic development--job training and assisting black South African businesses with information technology;

Does not fund: Individual requests for financial/scholarship assistance; grants toward building funds, publications/videos, conference and seminars;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Mr. R.D. Clifford, Program Manager

IBM

Old Orchard Road, Armonk, NY 10504 Tel. 914 765 5040; Fax. 914 765 7624

J.P. Morgan & Co.

Main areas of interest: Economic development for South Africa's black population; programs promoting educational and social opportunities for South Africa's black population;

Does not fund: Small local schools; religious organizations; small community-based organizations; individuals;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Laura D. Roosevelt, Vice President

J.P. Morgan & Co.

60 Wall Street, New York, NY 10024 Tel. 212 648 9673; Fax. 212 648 5082

Schering-Plough Corporation and Foundation

Main areas of interest: Health care; training and education;

Does not fund: Political activities;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Scherag (Pty) Ltd.

54 Electron Avenue, Isando 1600

Contact: Ms. Rita Sacco, Assistant Secretary

Schering-Plough Foundation

One Giralda Farms, Madison, NJ 07940 Tel. 201 822 7412; Fax. 201 822 7447

Ms. Aracelia Vila, Vice President, International Public Affairs

Schering-Plough Corporation

2000 Galloping Hill Road, Kenilworth, NJ 07033

Tel. 908 298 4035; Fax. 908 298 5908

Media

Africa News Services

Main areas of interest: Publishes the biweekly newspaper "Africa News;" supplies reporting and information to broadcast and print media outlets throughout the U.S.;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Ms. Bertie R. Howard, Executive Director

Africa News Service

P.O. Box 3851, Durham, NC 27702 Tel. 919 286 0747; Fax. 919 286 2614

Africa Today Associates

Main areas of interest: Publishing the quarterly journal "Africa Today" containing

academic articles, book reviews, etc. on Africa--approximately 20 percent of material in a typical volume (four issues) deals with South Africa (edited by Jendayi Frazer);

Does not fund: Only funds publication of "Africa Today;"

Trustees: George W. Shepherd (President); Tilden LeMelle (Vice President): Edward A. Hawley (Treasurer); Akbarali H. Thobani (Secretary); Robert Brown; Richard Lapchick;

George Houser; James Scarritt;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Africa Today Associates

c/o Graduate School of International Studies University of Denver, Denver, CO 80208 Tel. 303 871 3678; Fax. 303 871 2456

California Newsreel

Main areas of interest: Distributor of film/video addressing South African issues--all anti-

apartheid films;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Cornelius Moore

California Newsreel

149 9th Street, San Francisco CA 94103 Tel. 415 621 6196; Fax. 415 621 6522

Children's Television Workshop

Main areas of interest: Educational media; Does not fund: Not a funding agency

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Not available as yet.

Contact: Children's Television Workshop

One Lincoln Plaza, New York, NY 10023 Tel. 212 595 3456; Fax. 212 875 6108

National Public Radio (NPR)

Main areas of interest: Receives private support for coverage of development and environmental issues in southern Africa; the rest of its coverage of South Africa is not funded from private sources but from its base budget;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: NPR has a reporter based in South Africa.

Contact: Ms. Nancy Arnesen, Director of Developments for News

National Public Radio (NPR)

2025 M Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20036 Tel. 202 822 2297; Fax. 202 822 2098

Worldwide Documentaries, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Film production company focusing on worldwide leadership and cultural issues:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Mr. Robert Bilheimer

Worldwide Documentaries, Inc.

3741 Oakmount Road, Holcomb, NY 14469 Tel. 716 657 5400; Fax. 716 657 5402

Private Foundations

Albert Kunstadter Family Foundation

Main areas of interest: General purpose;

Does not fund: Individuals; religious institutions; non-U.S. organizations;

Trustees: Geraldine Kunstadter; John W. Kunstadter; Lisa Kunstadter; Elizabeth von

Habsburg; Christopher T.W. Kunstadter;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Geraldine Kunstadter, Chairman

Albert Kunstadter Family Foundation 1035 Fifth Avenue, New York, NY 10025 Tel. 212 794 3951; Fax. 212 794 1273

Andrew W. Mellon Foundation

Main areas of interest: Higher education;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: While grants made to South African universities in 1992 totaled \$2,000,000 as part of the Foundation's Higher Education Program, there is no ongoing budget for South Africa (or for any other Foundation program).

Contact: Mr. Henry N. Drewry

Andrew W. Mellon Foundation

140 East 62nd Street, New York, NY 10021

Tel. 212 838 8400 or 609 924 4192; Fax. 212 223 2778 or 609 683 4471

Carnegie Corporation of New York

Main areas of interest: Women's rights and political participation; women's leadership development;

Does not fund: Individual fellowships;

Officers of Board of trustees: Warren Christopher (Chairman); Sheila E. Widnall (Vice

Chairman);

Size of budget related to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Ms. Yolanda Richardson, Program Officer

Carnegie Corporation of New York 437 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10022 Tel. 212 371 3200; 212 754 4073

Charles Stewart Mott Foundation

Main areas of interest: Community development; civil society;

Advisory Committee:

Size of budget related to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: P.O. Box 3774, Johannesburg 2000,

Tel. 011 299 851; Fax. 011 290 121

Contact: Ms. Christa L. Kuljian, Program Officer

Charles Stewart Mott Foundation

1200 Mott Foundation Building, Flint, MI 48502-1851

Tel. 313 238 5651; Fax. 313 766 1753

Ford Foundation

Main areas of interest: Law and human rights; higher education; community economic

development; public policy;

Does not fund: Medical programs; primary and secondary education; individual

fellowships and bursaries:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: The Ford Foundation

Executive Suites, Ground Floor

Hyprop Gardens, 30 Wellington Road, Parktown 2193

Tel. 011 488 9777; Fax. 011 484 4156

Contact: The Ford Foundation

320 East 43rd Street, New York, NY 10017 Tel. 212 573 5000; Fax. 212 867 6597

Genesis Foundation

Main areas of interest: Pre-tertiary education in rural areas;

Does not fund: All others:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Mr. John K. Harwood, President

Genesis Foundation

2980 West Shore Road, Warwick, Rhode Island 02886-5458

Tel. 401 738 3324; Fax. 401 738 3263

Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation

Main areas of interest: Health reform, including health policy development, advocacy training, primary health care demonstration projects, health planning and management capacity development, and health systems research;

Does not fund: Anything outside of health:

Trustees: Available on request;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Dr. Michael R. Sinclair, Program Director

Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation

1455 F Street, N.W., Suite 250, Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 347 5270; Fax. 202 347 5274

Institute of Current World Affairs Crane-Rogers Foundation

Main areas of interest: Funding fellowships for promising young professionals to study

international issues;

Does not fund: An operating foundation, it funds only the above;

Trustees: John Spencer (Chairman); Joseph Battat (Vice Chairman); Mary Beausoleil (Secretary); Edmund H. Sutton (Treausrer); Sharon LeLievre-Hovenden (Assistant

Secretary/Treasurer);

Contact: Mr. Peter Bird Martin, Executive Director

Institute of Current World Affairs Crane-Rogers Foundation Wheelock House, 4 West Wheelock Street, Hanover, NH 03755

Tel. 603 643 5548; Fax. 603 643 9599

International Foundation

Main areas of interest: Health; agriculture; education; Does not fund: Scholarships; conferences; publications;

Trustees: David S. Bate; Duncan Clark; J. Carter Hammel; Frank Madden; Edward

Holmes; John D. Camrico; William McCormick; Gary Discovitch;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Edward A. Holmes, Grants Chairman

The International Foundation P.O. Box 3110, Sewanee, TN 37375 Tel. 615 598 0894; Fax. 615 598 5436

J. Roderick MacArthur Foundation

Main areas of interest: Human rights/civil liberties/social justice;

Does not fund: Capital projects; endowments; land or building acquisitions; government-supported activities; university or other educational programs; economic development and training programs; can only fund nonprofit tax-exempt 501 (c)(3) organizations;

Trustees: Gregoire C. MacArthur (Chairman); Solange D. MacArthur (Vice Chairman);

John R. MacArthur (Secretary/Treasurer).

Contact: Mr. Lance E. Lindblom, President

J. Roderick MacArthur Foundation

9333 North Milwaukee Avenue, Niles, IL 60714

Tel. 708 966 0143; Fax. 708 966 3121

McKnight Foundation

Main areas of interest: The McKnight Foundation's funding in South Africa is limited to

the University of Cape Town Fund, Inc.;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Carol Berde

McKnight Foundation

600 TCF Tower, Minneapolis, MN 55402

Tel. 612 333 4220

New Prospect Foundation

Main areas of interest: Community development; legal services/legal rights;

Does not fund: Capital campaigns; secondary and higher education;

Trustees: Elliot Lehman; Frances Lehman; Kenneth Lehman; Nancy Lehman; Paul

Lehman; Kay Schlozman; Stanley Schlozman; Ronna Stamm; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Frances Lehman, President

New Prospect Foundation

1420 Sheridan Road, #9A, Wilmette, IL 60091

Tel. 708 256 3886

New World Foundation

Main areas of interest: U.S.-based social justice organizing;

Does not fund: No funding outside the U.S.;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Ann Bastion, Senior Program Officer

New World Foundation

100 East 68th Street, New York, NY 10028 Tel. 212 249 1023; Fax. 212 472 0508

Patrick and Anna M. Cudahy Fund

Main areas of interest: Development; youth; and education;

Does not fund: It does not make grants directly to organizations outside the U.S.;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Judith Borchers, Executive Director

Patrick and Anna Cudahy Fund

1007 Church Street, Suite 305, Evanston, IL 60201

Tel. 708 866 0760

Peace Development Fund

Main areas of interest: Education, organizing, and advocacy related to southern Africa; collaboration and networking amongst U.S.-based advocacy and organizing groups on southern Africa issues;

Does not fund: Activities or programs within southern African countries; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Rose M. Sackey-Milligan

Peace Development Fund

44 No. Prospect Street, Box 1280, Amherst, MA 01004

Tel. 413 256 8306; Fax. 413 256 8871

Rockefeller Brothers Fund

Main areas of interest: Materials development, teaching methodology, and curriculum reform projects for preschool. primary, and adult basic education;

Officers of the Board of Trustees: Mrs. George D. O'Neill (Chairman); Steven C.

Rockefeller (Vice Chairman);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Nancy Muirhead, Program Officer

Rockefeller Brothers Fund

1290 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10104

Tel. 212 373 4200; Fax. 212 315 0996

Rockefeller Foundation

Main areas of interest: Only activities relating South Africa with the rest of the African continent; female education/health/population/agriculture/energy; arts & humanities; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. Joyce Moock, Associate Vice President for African Initiatives

The Rockefeller Foundation

1133 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036

Tel. 212 869 8500; Fax. 212 764 3468

South Coast Foundation

Main areas of interest: Program support to South African NGOs that provide training to community-based organizations in the areas of administrative skills, financial management, managerial skills, project management, organizational development, and negotiating and advocacy skills:

Does not fund: Proposals accepted upon request only; Trustees: Kathy Cook; Frank Cook; Bill Cook; Jason Hebel; Size of budget relating to SA activities Under \$100.000.:

Contact: Ms. Kathy Cook, President

South Coast Foundation

1563 Solano Avenue, Suite 354, Berkeley, CA 94707

Tel. 510 559 8148

Stewardship Foundation

Main areas of interest: Religious philanthropy (church and para-church related projects and organizations); justice/reconciliation/leadership development;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Mr. George Kovats, Executive Director

Stewardship Foundation

P.O. Box 1298, Tacoma, WA 98401 Tel. 206 272 8336; Fax. 206 572 2721

William and Flora Hewlett

Main areas of interest: Conflict resolution; education; environment; performing arts; population:

Does not fund: Individuals; basic research; capital construction; medical or health-related programs; fundraising drives;

Trustees: William R. Hewlett (Chairman); Walter B. Hewlett (Vice Chairman); Roger W. Heyns (President).

Contact: Mr. Ray Bacchetti, Program Officer for Education

William and Flora Hewlett Foundation

525 Middlefield Road, Suite 200, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Tel. 415 329 1070; Fax. 415 329 9342

W.K. Kellogg Foundation

Main areas of interest: Higher education bursaries in health, agriculture, education, commerce, and public administration; demonstration projects in primary health care, agriculture, rural development, leadership development, youth, and primary education;

Does not fund: Research, construction;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Isaac Nkwe

c/o Coordinated Marketing & Management (Pty) Ltd.

100 Northern Parkway, 2nd floor, Block B. Crownwood, Ormonde 2091

Tel. 011 835 2361; Fax. 011 835 1469

Contact: Dr. Norman A. Brown, President

W.K. Kellogg Foundation

One Michigan Avenue East, Battle Creek, MI 49017-4058

Tel. 616 968 1611; Fax. 616 969 2190

Private and voluntary organizations

Academy for Educational Development (AED)

Main areas of interest: Offers technical services in formal and nonformal education planning and management; workforce development and institutional strengthening; health education and communications;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency, but a consulting firm:

Board of Directors: Sol M. Linowitz (Honorary Chairman); Luther H. Foster (Chairman); Jo Diebold (Vice Chairman); Stephen F. Moseley (President and Chief Executive Officer); Joseph S. Iseman (Secretary of the Corporation);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Mr. Earl Yates, Vice President

> Human Resources and Institutional Development The Academy for Educational Development

1255 23rd Street, N.W., Suite 400, Washington, DC 20037

Tel. 202 862 1700; Fax. 202 862 1947

African-American Institute (AAI)

Main areas of interest: Human resource development/education; policy studies; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: Maurice Tempelsman (Chairman); Roger Wilkins (Vice Chairman); Dolly Desselle Adams; Yvonne Braithwaite Burke; William R. Cotter; Kerry Kennedy Cuomo; Francis M. Deng; Vivian Lowery Derryck; Harold E. Doley, Jr.; Thomas R. Donahue; Peggy Dulany; Nadine Hack; Jon L. Hagler; Bernard W. Harleston; William H. Hayden; Robert M. Hoen; Walter J. Kamba; George N. Lindsay; James H. Lowry; William Lucy; Richard H. Matzke; Harriet R. Michel; Randolph Nugent; Olusegun Obasanjo; Gamaliel O. Onosode; Nancy Clark Reynolds; Loren D. Ross; John Spencer; Carl Ware; Thomas Winship;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000-500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Frank Ferrari

African-American Institute

27 Jorissen Street, 11th floor, Braamfontein 2017

Tel. 011 403 3308; Fax. 011 339 2426

Contact: Mr. Steve McDonald, Executive Vice President

African-American Institute

833 U.N. Plaza, New York, NY10017 Tel. 212 949 5666; Fax. 212 682 6174

African Medical and Research Foundation (AMREF)

Main areas of interest: Health (including family planning, child health, water and

sanitation, AIDS prevention, health planning);

Do not fund: AMREF works just in the health field;

Trustees: Thomas D. Rees (Chairman); Ned W. Bandler, Jr. (Vice Chairman); George F. Brown (Vice Chairman); Alan J. Blinken (Treasurer); James R. Sheffield (President); J. Dinsmore Adams, Jr.; Michael H. Alderman; William L. Bernhard; Bruce Bodner; Karen Dreher; Albina du Boisrouvray; Robert F. Fairchild; David W. Furnas; Michael S. Gerber; Allen Grossman; Geoffrey Kent; Francine Leinhardt; Robert Lilley; Karl McDowell; Ronald J. Moss; James G. Niven; Arthur O. Phinney, Jr.; Tim Purcell; Craig Saxton. Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000 (so far);

Office in SA: AMREF will open a small office in Johannesburg in 1993.

Contact: Dr. James Sheffield

African Medical and Research Foundation (AMREF)

420 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY 10170 Tel. 212 986 1835; Fax. 212 599 5064

AFRICARE

Main areas of interest: Agricultural production; primary health care; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Ms. Lois Hobson, Country Representative

AFRICARE

112 Commissioner Street, Suite 602, E.P. Building, Johannesburg 2001

Tel. 011 838 3295; Fax. 011 83 7980

Contact: Mr. Jeffrey Flax

AFRICARE

440 R Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20001 Tel. 202 462 3614; Fax. 202 387 1034

American Council on Education

Main areas of interest: Higher education (e.g., Study of Cooperative Opportunities for Libraries in the Western Cape); historically black universities (e.g., Leveling the Playing Field: Observations on Five Historically Black Universities in South Africa, Report of ACE to the Ford Foundation, September 16, 1992);

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to \$500,000.

Partner in SA: The Ford Foundation

Executive Suites, 30 Wellington Road, Parktown 2193

Contact: Dr. Fred Hayward, Project Director

American Council on Education

One Dupont Circle, Suite 800, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 939 9418; Fax.202 833 4760

American ORT Federation

Main areas of interest: Technical and vocational education and training; education/general;

Does not fund: It funds very little outside its own (ORT) institutions, but outside its own institutions it does operate under contracts or grants (with USAID, for example);

Affiliation: World ORT Union in London is its main operational office;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mrs. Thelma Miller

ORT South Africa

P.O. Box 95090, Grant Park 2192 Tel. 011 728 7154; Fax. 011 728 2623

Contact: Mr. Paul Bernick, Assistant Secretary

American ORT Federation 817 Broadway, New York, NY

Tel. 212 677 4400; Fax. 212 979 9545

American Psychological Association (APA)

Main areas of interest: Identifying opportunities for U.S. graduate study in psychology for disenfranchised South Africans (e.g., black, "colored," and Indian); modest (\$1,000) support for the Family Centre, Soweto;

Committee on International Relations: Donald K. Freedheim; Bernard M Bass; Mary A. Jansen; Denis Nissim-Sabat; Susan Pick de Weiss; M. Brewster Smith; Leonore Loeb Adler; Guillermo Bernal; Jeffrey A. Rubin; Raymond D. Fowler; Rachel Gelman; Mark Rosenzwieg; Mathilda B. Canter; Henry P. David;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Well under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Joan Buchanan, Director, Office of International Affairs

American Psychological Association

750 First Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20002

Tel. 202 336 6024; Fax. 202 336 5919

American Red Cross International Services

Main areas of interest: Programs and services between the American Red Cross and the South African Red Cross; branch development between American Red Cross and South African Red Cross branches;

Does not fund: It is currently in the process of developing a program with the South African Red Cross and has not yet approached potential donors; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: The South African Red Cross Society

P.O. Box 8726, Johannesburg 2000

Contact: Ms. Nina de Rochefort, Associate, Africa and the Middle East

American Red Cross International Services
17th and D. Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20006

Tel. 202 639 3313; Fax. 202 347 4486

America's Development Foundation

Main areas of interest: Civic education/democratic initiatives and processes; human rights;

Affiliation: InterAction:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Michael Miller, President

America's Development Foundation (ADF)

101 North Union Street, Suite 200, Alexandria, VA 22314

Tel. 703 836 2717; Fax. 703 836 3379

Aurora Associates South African Higher Education Program (SAHEP)

Main areas of interest: Education, training, and professional development; youth services and community development;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Ms. Anne Githuku

c / o South African Institute for International Affairs

Jan Smuts House, University of the Witwatersrand, Braamfontein 2017

Contact: Dr. James M. Statman

Aurora Associates South African Higher Education Program (SAHEP)

1015 18th Street, N.W., Suite 400

Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 463 0950; Fax. 202 659 2724

CARE International

Main areas of interest: Institutional strengthening and development of indigenous NGOS; rural development (primary health care, agriculture and natural resources, and promotion of micro-enterprise);

Does not fund: Education; bursaries;

CARE-South Africa Advisory Panel: Hlope Brigalia Bam; Alan Boesak; Cheryl Carolus; Charles Dhlamini; Sheena Duncan; Jakes Gerwel; Colin Jones; Horst Kleinschmidt;

Smangaliso Mkhatshwa; Beyers Naude; David Screen; Bob Tucker; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Ronald Burkard, Country Director

CARE International

P.O. Box 3774, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 299 851; Fax. 011 290 121

Contact: Mr. Brian J. Cavanagh, Regional Manager

Southern Africa Regional Management Unit

CARE, Inc.

660 First Avenue, New York, NY 10016

Tel. 212 686 3110, ext. 298; Fax. 212 779 7988

Catholic Relief Services (CRS)

Main areas of interest: Small enterprise development (e.g., credit union and cooperative development); AIDS education/awareness; human rights; Affiliations: CRS is the overseas relief and development agency of the United States Catholic Conference; member of Caritas Internationalis; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000;

Office in Mr. Chris Allan, Acting Director, Southern Africa Regional Office

Southern Catholic Relief Services

Africa: P.O. Box 8202, Causeway, Harare, Zimbabwe

Tel. and Fax. 263 4 792072

Contact: Mr. Paul Miller, Desk Officer, Africa Region

Catholic Relief Services

209 West Fayette Street, Baltimore, MD 21201-3443

Tel. 410 625 2220; Fax. 410 234 3178

Center for Public Justice

Main areas of interest: General interest in South Africa; international politics; Christianity and politics; Constitutional reform:

Does not fund: Does not fund outside activities

Trustees: Richard Chewning; Roy Clouser; Gary Govert; William Harper; Case

Hoogendoorn; Donald Kruse; Luis Lugo; Rockne McCarthy; Ken Ozinga; Lee Plasier; Julia

K. Stronks; Mary Szto; Shirley Van Zanten; Lou Voskuil; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Far under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. James W. Skillen, Executive Director

Center for Public Justice

321 8th Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20002-6107

Tel. 202 546 0489; Fax. 410 263 3857

Center for Racial Equality and Democratic Opportunity, Inc. (CREDO)

Main areas of interest: To train black South Africans for a diplomatic career; to contribute to development of local and regional governmental structures;

Trustees: Alan Wood Lukens (Chairman); C. William Kontos (Deputy Chairman); Donald J. Bouchard; Brenda L. Bryant; Stefan A. Halper; Armistead Lee; Arthur W. Lewis; LaRue R. Lutkins; Wallace Mathai-Davis; Donald R. Norland; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. John H. Chettle, General Counsel

CREDO

1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W., Suite 825, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 457 5115; Fax. 202 457 5151

Clergy and Laity Concerned

Main areas of interest: Interfaith, multiracial work against racism for justice and peace in the U.S. and around the world;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Affiliation: Membership organization with 40 chapters and affiliates in the U.S.;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Leslie Withers, Program Director

Clergy and Laity Concerned

340 Mead Road, Decatur, GA 30030 Tel. 404 377 1983; Fax. 404 377 5367

Community Development Institute

Main areas of interest: Community development; youth services; Size of budget relating to SA activities: All done through volunteer activities.

Contact: Mr. Omawale Satterwhite, President

Community Development Institute

P.O. Box 50099

East Palo Alto, CA 94303

Tel. 415 327 5846; Fax. 415 327 4430

Council for International Exchange of Scholars (CIES)

Main areas of interest: CIES, in cooperation with the U.S. Information Agency, administers Fulbright grants for U.S. faculty and professionals to undertake college and university lecturing and conduct research in South Africa. Grants are available for individuals with the Ph.D. and award opportunities are open to all disciplines. CIES also cooperates in the program for South African scholars to come to the U.S. for advanced research, providing services to visiting grantees.

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; grants for visiting scholars are issued through the U.S. Embassy; funding for the Fulbright Scholar Program is provided by USIA.

Partner in SA: U.S. Information Service

U.S. Embassy

Contact: Ms. Linda Rhoad, Area Chief for Africa

Council for International Exchange of Scholars

3007 Tilden Street, N.W., Suite 5M, Washington, DC 20008

Tel. 202 686 6230; Fax. 202 362 3442

Council of International Programs

Main areas of interest: U.S.-based training programs in public administration, educational administration, health care planning and administration, housing and community development, family services management, AIDS prevention and care, substance abuse and dependency, environmental planning;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Executive Committee: Sheldon Siegel (President); Richard T. Arndt (Vice President); Thurman R. Bullock (Treasurer); Anita Harbert (Secretary); Paul Unger (Honorary President); Carol D. Freund (Immediate Past President); Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Partner in SA: U.S. Information Service (USIS)

Contact: Ms. Julie Snyder Denton, Program Associate

Council of International Programs

500 Twenty-Third Street, N.W., Suite B-902, Washington, DC 20037

202 429 4351; Fax. 202 429 4354

Global Future Links

Main areas of interest: Conflict resolution training and application; youth leadership in conflict resolution, community development, and nonviolent social change;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: In formation;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Partner in SA: Leadership South

(Interim) 5 Bowwood Road, Claremont 7700

Contact: Mr. Dudley Weeks

Global Future Links

2400 41st Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20007

Tel. 202 337 7574; Fax. 202 895 4960

Goodwill Industries of America, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Vocational rehabilitation and training worldwide for people with

disabilities; job creation and employment worldwide for people with disabilities;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Goodwill Industries of South Africa

P.O. Box 42079, 16 High Road, Fordsburg 2033

Contact: Ms. Elizabeth Scott, Director, International Affairs

Goodwill Industries of America, Inc.

9200 Wisconsin Avenue, Bethesda, MD 20814 Tel. 301 530 6500; Fax. 301 530 1516

Institute of International Education

Main areas of interest: Among the programs IIE administers for black South Africans are two external scholarship programs: the South African Education Program (SAEP) awards full academic scholarships at the graduate and undergraduate level; the Career Development Fellowship Program (CDFP) awards short-term nondegree fellowships to individuals who have demonstrated commitment to the development of black communities. On behalf of a consortium of nine South African historically black universities, IIE administers the South African-United States University Linkages Program, under which new graduate programs in South Africa are drawing on inputs from partner institutions in the U.S.;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; the scholarship programs are sponsored by USAID, the participating universities, and the private sector.

Partner in SA: Father Buti Tlhagale

Educational Opportunities Council (EOC)

Hunts Corner, 2nd floor, 20 New South Street, Johannesburg 2001

Tel. 011 331 8311; Fax.

Contact: Mrs. Dorothy Anderson, Executive Director

African Human Resources Development Project

Institute of International Education

1400 K Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20005-2403

Tel. 202 962 8806; Fax. 202 842 1219

International Book Bank, Inc. (IBB)

Main areas of interest: IBB solicits book donations from American publishers to send to developing and needy countries to promote literacy and self-help programs;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; IBB recovers the expenses associated with the procurement, processing, packing, and shipping of the books through funding from private

donations, contracts or grants:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Maurice Hadebe

Forum for Adult Continued Education in Natal (FACE--Natal)

P.O. Box 2095, Durban 4000

Tel. 011 333 9746; Fax. 011 333 2297

Contact: Ms. Suzette Ungvarsky, Manager of Operations

International Book Bank, Inc. (IBB)

608-L Folcroft Street, Baltimore, MD 21224 Tel. 410 633 2929; Fax. 410 633 3082

International Catholic Migration Commission (ICMC)

Main areas of interest: Refugees, migrants, and displaced persons regardless of creed; Does not fund: Programs outside the refugee, migrant, displaced persons mandate of the organization; population programs;

Affiliation: World headquarters of the ICMC are in Geneva; Officers of the Governing Committee are Michael Whiteley (Australia); Jorge Avila del Aguila (Guatemala); and Anne Lise Timmerman (Denmark);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Commission for Migrants and Itinerant People

P.O. Box 9270, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 402 0760; Fax. 011 402 8917

Contact: Ms. Mitzi Schroeder, Director Washington Office

International Catholic Migration Commission

1319 F Street, N.W., Suite 820, Washington, DC 20004

Tel. 202 393 2904; Fax. 202 393 2908

International Student Exchange Program (ISEP)

Main areas of interest: Reciprocal, university level, educational exchange programming

among member institutions around the world, including Africa:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Diana J. Shandy, Program Officer

International Student Exchange Program

3222 N Street, N.W., Suite 4000, Washington, DC 20003

Tel. 202 965 0550; Fax. 202 965 0405

International Voluntary Services (IVS)

Main areas of interest: Food and water security; community health;

Does not fund: IVS does not provide funding, only technical assistance in the form of

volunteers to local organizations that request its assistance;

Affiliations: Interaction and PACT.

Office in SA: IVS is not presently working in South Africa, only in southern Africa

Contact: Ms. Tonya Caprarola, Program Officer

IVS

1424 16th Street, N.W., #204, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 387 5533; Fax. 202 387 4234

International Wilderness Leadership (WILD) Foundation

Main areas of interest: Wilderness; natural resources; interface with people and communities:

Does not fund: Funds its own projects and those of its partner only;

Member: World Conservation Union (IUCN);

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Mr. Andrew Muir

Wilderness Leadership School

P.O. Box 53058, Yellowwood Park 4011 Tel. 031 428 642; Fax. 031 428 675

Mr. Vance Martin Contact:

International Wilderness Leadership (WILD) Foundation

211 West Magnolia, Fort Collins, CO 80521 Tel. 303 498 0303; Fax. 303 498 0403

Intersect

Main areas of interest: Corporate/community relations and outreach;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; it helps to design and implement programs and projects;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Paul Holmes, Consultant

Intersect

1423 Taylor Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20011

Tel. 202 723 3319; Fax. 202 723 0211

Iowa South African Scholarships, Inc. (ISASI)

Main areas of interest: The mission of ISASI is to provide emergency funds to South African/Namibian students who are already enrolled and are in good standing at the University of Iowa:

Size of budget related to SA activities: Way under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. M.W. Wall, Chair

c/o ISASI

1658 Ridge Road, Iowa City, IA 52245-1629

Tel. 319 338 2618

Mobility International USA

Main areas of interest: International educational exchange, which includes persons with disabilities, cross-cultural, and leadership programs; videos and publications on these topics;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Susa: Sygall, Director

Mobility International USA P.O. Box 3551, Eugene, OR 97403 Tel. 503 343 1284; Fax. 503 343 6812

National Council of Negro Women

Main areas of interest: Women in development; institutional development; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Lucille Thomas, Director

National Council of Women International Division 1667 K Street, N.W. #700, Washington, DC 20006

Tel. 202 659 0006; Fax. 202 785 8733

Open Door Student Exchange

Main areas of interest: Hopes to develop a secondary school exchange program with South Africa in the near future:

Trustees: Robert J. Alexander; Antonia Cowles; Arnold C. Franco; Alice H. Gansfield;

Marilyn D. Hunter; Hilda Jaffe; Edward S. Levin;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Howard Bertenthal, President

Open Door Student Exchange

P.O. Box 71, 250 Fulton Avenue, Hempstead, NY 11551

Tel. 516 486 7330; Fax. 516 486 7859

Partners for International Education and Training (PIET)

Main areas of interest: Private sector business development; training and education; Does **not** fund: As a contractor PVO, it does provide programs, but is not a funding agency;

Partner organizations in the PIET joint venture: African-American Institute; AMID East, the Asia Foundation; World Learning;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Client in SA USSALEP

and in U.S.: P.O. Box 32869, Braamfontein 2017

Tel. 011 339 6774; Fax. 011 403 1113

Contact: Ms. Caroline K. Hollister, Manager, Entrepreneurs International

1990 M Street, N.W., Suite 310, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 223 4291; Fax. 202 223 4289

Population Services International (PSI)

Main areas of interest: Social marketing for AIDS prevention (condoms);

Does not fund: PSI is not a grant organization; it raises funds to support its own projects;

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Duncan Earle

PSI / South Africa

174 Evans Road, 2nd floor, Glenwood 4001

Tel. and Fax. 031 256 115

Contact: Mr. Richard Frank, President

PSI

1120 19th Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 785 0072; Fax. 202 785 0120

Private Agencies Collaborating Together (PACT) Inc.

Main areas of interest: NGO sector strengthening; building civil society;

Does not fund: PACT is South Africa is not a funding agency; Trustees; PACT is governed by an international board of directors;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Ms. Marilyn Richards, Representative in South Africa

P.O. Box 32286, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 403 3010/2; Fax. 011 403 1104

Contact: Mr. David Williams, Director for Africa

PACT

1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., #501, Washington, DC 20006

Tel. 202 466 5666; Fax. 202 466 5669

Salesian Missions

Main areas of interest: Nonformal education/skills training for youth; street children

programs;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Salesians of Don Bosco

Ozanam House, 66 Nelson Road, Booysens 2091

Contact: Rev. E.J. Cappeelletti, S.D.B., Director

Salesian Missions

1515 North Court House Road, Suite 502, Arlington, VA 22201

Tel. 703 524 0667; Fax. 703 524 9882

Save the Children

Main areas of interest: Women and children initiatives in community development;

refugee repatriation and emergency response;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in Mr. John Salamack, Subregional Director--Southern Africa

Southern Save the Children

Africa: P.O. Box 2908, Harare, Zimbabwe

Contact: Ms. Barbara Holaway, Program Officer--Southern Africa

Save the Children

54 Wilton Road, Westport, CT 06880 Tel. 203 221 4226; Fax. 203 222 9176

Sister Cities International

Main areas of interest: Engages in all forms of exchange, including youth and education (kindergarten through university); municipal education and training; arts and culture; and professional and technical exchanges;

From time to time, it has grants available that member cities/programs may apply for; Size of budget relating to SA activities: None of its budget is currently dedicated specifically to South African initiatives.

Contact: Ms. Carol Lynn Greene, Executive Director

Sister Cities International

120 South Payne Street, Alexandria, VA 22314 Tel. 703 836 3535, ext 19; Fax. 703 836 4815

Synergos Institute

Main areas of interest: Strengthening communities; developing collaborative approaches to poverty problems; creating financial mechanisms to support community initiatives; Does not fund: Synergos, which is not a funding agency, does not currently work directly in South Africa, but has organized two conference for the southern African region on the theme of creating financial mechanisms to strengthen civil society; Trustees: Etienne Allard; Mark J. D'Arcangelo; Peggy Dulany; Nadine B. Hack; W. Thomas Johnson; Elizabeth J. McCormack; Richard M. Moose; Jon W. Rotenstreich; S. Bruce Shearer; Isaac Shapiro; Adele Simmons; Ellen Johnson Sirleaf; James Silgar; P. Michael Timpane; Michaela Walsh; John H. Watts; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. David Winder, Program Director

The Synergos Institute

100 East 85th Street, New York, NY 10028 Tel. 212 517 4800; Fax. 212 517 4815

Syosset International

Main areas of interest: Education; intercultural relations;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Affiliations: 250 intercultural organization members.

Contact: Mr. Bill Kupec, Director

Syosset International

29 Narcissus Drive, Syosset, NY 11791

Tel. 516 921 1997

United Way International

Main areas of interest: Promotion of civil societies through support of the private voluntary sector in general; technical assistance and training to United Way types of organizations around the world:

Affiliations: InterAction and PACT:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Mr. Keith Bewick, Acting Chair

Community Chest of the Western Cape P.O. Box 3836, Cape Town 8000 Tel. 021 418 1920; Fax. 021 24 4188

Mrs. Lynn S. Scott, Director

Durban and Costal Community Chest

P.O. Box 2171, Durban 4000

Tel. 031 304 4592; Fax. 031 304 4596

Dr. Keith Wimble, President

National Association of South Africa Community Chests

195 Longmarket Street, Pietermaritzburg 3201

Tel. 0331 941 031; Fax. 331 949 153

Contact:

Mr. Russy D. Sumariwalla, President and Chief Executive Officer

United Way International

901 North Pitt Street, Alexandria, VA 22314 Tel. 703 519 0092; Fax. 703 519 0097

World Education

Main areas of interest: Small enterprise and partnership; health and organizational development; literacy; environment; workplace education (equal priority for three main program areas);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: c/o Kusoma Program Coordinator

Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA) P.O. Box 31320, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 291 854: Fax. 011 290 121

Contact:

Ms. Gillian Garb, Southern Africa Program Coordinator

World Education

210 Lincoln Street. Boston, MA 02111 Tel. 617 482 9485; Fax. 617 482 0617

World Learning

Main areas of interest: NGO development; human resource development (both have equal priority):

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; receives funding from various donors; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Creative Associates is the prime contractor and World Learning is a

subcontractor for the USAID-funded Community and Higher Education

Project.

Contact:

Ms. Bonnie Ricci, Director, Development Management

World Learning

1015 15th Street, N.W., Suite 750, Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 408 5420; Fax. 202 408 5397

World Vision Relief and Development

Main areas of interest: Sustainable community development--water, health, agriculture, micro-economic development, management and training; disaster relief and

recovery/advocacy and reconciliation; Does not fund: Bursaries/education;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$5,000,000.

Office in SA: Executive Director

World Vision Southern Africa

5 Main Avenue, P.O. Box 1101, Florida 1710

Tel. 011 674 2043; Fax. 011 672 0392

Contact:

Mr. Thomas R. Getman, Director, Government Relations

World Vision Relief and Development

220 I Street, N.E., #270, Washington, D.C. 20002

Tel. 202 547 3743; Fax. 202 547 4834

YMCA of the USA

Main areas of interest: Training and leadership development; local YMCAs' development projects:

Does not fund: It only funds requests from the YMCAs in Africa;

Affiliations: The World Alliance of YMCAs (Geneva, Switzerland), which has NGO status

at the U.N.; the African Alliance of YMCAs (Nairobi, Kenya);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: South African National Council of YMCAs

603 MSOA Building, 41 Biccard Street P.O. Box 31045, Braamfontein 2017

Tel. 011 339 1385

Contact:

Mr. Desta Girma, Director, U.S. YMCA Office for Africa

YMCA of the USA

330 Boulevard of the Allies

Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Tel. 412 227 3800; Fax. 412 471 6539

Public Foundations

Cape of Good Hope Foundation

Main areas of interest: Improving the quality of black higher education in southern Africa:

Does not fund: Areas unrelated to the above; capital grants;

Trustees: Ned Munger (President); Arthur R. Carlson (Treasurer); J. Stanley Sanders (Secretary); Martin J. Aliker; G. Valerie Batts; George M. Burditt; Patricia Carter; Stephen D. Cohen; Fleur Cowles; Meyer Feldberg; Dielle Fleischmann; J. Wayne Fredericks; Richard C. Gilman; Clifford B. Gosney; Grace Hill; Yvonne Jones; William S. Kalema; Helen Kitchen; John A. Marcum; Sal G. Marzullo; W. Owens Miller; James Perkins; Edward Roemer; Louis K. Scheffer; Henry R. Slack; Lynette Soudien; John Spencer; Edmund H. Sutton; James W. Symington; Ruby Theophile; Francis M. Wheat; Charles G. Wootton:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000-500,000.

Contact:

Dr. Ned Munger, President Cape of Good Hope Foundation

1201 E. California, Pasadena, CA 91125 Tel. 813 356 4468; Fax. 818 795 1547

Education Fund for Southern Africa

Main areas of interest: Financial support for refugees in four-year degree program in the

U.S.; public education programs; Does **not** fund: All other areas;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

David Berger, Ph.D.

Education Fund for Southern Africa P.O. Box 54344, Philadelphia, PA 19105

Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA)

Main areas of interest: Technical assistance to nongovernmental organizations (NGOs) and community-based organizations (CBOs) in South Africa; financial assistance to NGOs and CBOs (no unsolicited proposals); investment funds for community development projects; Does not fund: Bursaries/scholarships; grants to individuals;

Trustees: Margaret Burnham (Chair); Mokubung Nkomo (Vice Chair); Beate Klein Becker (Treasurer); Geoffrey Norman (Clerk); Janet Axelrod; Toby D'Oench; Melba Kgositsile; Bernard Magubane; Renosi Mokate; Glaudine Mtshali; Mfundi Vundla; Joyce Williams-Mitchell;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Fund for a Free South Africa

P.O. Box 3774, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 29 9854; Fax. 011 29 0121

Contact:

Mr. Themba Vilakazi, Executive Director Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA) 729 Boylston Street, fifth floor, Boston, MA 02116 Tel. 617 267 8333; Fax. 617 267 2585

Funding Exchange

Main areas of interest: Community organizing; environment; international solidarity;

women's rights; youth empowerment;

Does not fund: Capital campaigns; endowments; social services; organizations with large budgets; individual projects; potential applicants must send for application materials.

Contact:

Ms. Dion Thompson, Grantmaking Department

Funding Exchange

666 Broadway, Suite 500, New York, NY 10012

Tel. 212 529 5300; Fax. 212 982 9272

Global Fund for Women

Main areas of interest: Female human rights; women's access to communications and

Does not fund: Individuals/groups not governed primarily by women;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Ms. Anne Firth Murray Global Fund for Women

2480 Sand Hill Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Tel. 415 854 0420; Fax. 415 854 8050

Grassroots International

Main areas of interest: Works with popular-based organizations that promote democratic change in South Africa; specifically, it currently funds a women's collective, a writers' coalition, a union cooperative, a health clinic, and agricultural training programs; Board of Directors: June Makela (Chairperson); Selma Abinader; Joseph Collins; Dan Connell; Jean Hardisky; Marie Kennedy; Kathy McAfee; Fernando Mendenez; Lynora Williams; Katherine Yin; Tim Wise (Executive Director); Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Ms. Amy Brodigan, Program Coordinator

Grassroots International

48 Grove Street, #103, Somerville MA 02144 Tel. 617 628 1664; Fax. 617 628 4737

Phelps-Stokes Fund

Main areas of interest: Education; research on African, African-American, and

American-Indian education:

Does not fund: Scholarships after 1993, when its Southern African Refugee Scholarship

Program ends;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000 (in 1993);

Mr. Gerald Le Melle, Director and General Counsel Contact:

Phelps-Stokes Fund 10 East 87th Street, New York, NY 10128 Tel. 212 427 8100; Fax. 212 876 6278

South Africa Education Fund, Inc. (SAEF)

Main areas of interest: Financial support for selected South African students at U.S. educational institutions; material support (books, educational equipment, etc.) for selected schools in South Africa:

Does **not** fund: Political organizations; trade unions; special interest groups; Trustees: Sipo Mzimela (President); Chester Grey (Treasurer); Edwin Jones, III (Secretary);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000 (for 1993).

Office in SA: Arrangements not yet final.

Contact: Dr. Sipo Mzimela, President

South African Education Fund, Inc. 1790 Lavista Road, Atlanta, GA 30329 Tel. 404 634 3336; Fax. 404 634 0505

Tides Foundation

Main areas of interest: Women's economic development; human rights; Does not fund: Individuals; universities; buildings; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Beth Rosales

Tides Foundation

1388 Sutter Street, Suite 1010, San Francisco, CA 94109

Tel. 415 771 4308; Fax. 415 771 0535

Research, Public Policy, or Professional Groups

American Association for the Advancement of Science

Main areas of interest: Defending the rights of South African scientists, engineers, and health professionals; working with the South African scientific community to encourage their involvement in promoting greater respect for human rights in South Africa; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Audrey R. Chapman, Director, Science and Human Rights Program

American Association for the Advancement of Science

1333 H Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20005 Tel. 202 326 6790; Fax. 202 289 4950

American Bar Association Fund for Justice and Education

Main areas of interest: Section of Litigation--Trial Advocacy Training in South Africa; Standing Committee on World Order Under Law--Promotion of Human Rights in South

Africa: The Role of Human Rights Lawyers in Developing a New Constitution and Bill of Rights; Section of International Law and Practice--South African Lawyers Assistance Project:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Officers: J. Michael McWilliams (President); R. William Ide III (President-Elect);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Lori Malinski, Assistant Director, Major Gifts

American Bar Association

541 North Fairbanks Court, Chicago, IL 60611

Tel. 312 988 5475; Fax. 312 988 6392

American Chemical Society (ACS)

Main areas of interest: Project Bookshare donates used scientific books and journals when requested and when ACS is able to make a match between the applicants and the book source;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: Joint Board-Council Committee on International Activities;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Joyce C. Torio and Dr. John M. Malin

American Chemical Society (ACS)

1155 16th Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 872 4449; Fax. 202 872 6317

Aspen Institute Congressional International Program

Main areas of interest: Educational program on southern Africa for members of the U.S. Congress; speakers' program on South Africa, co-sponsored by the Aspen Institute and the Carnegie Endowment for International Peace;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. Pauline H. Baker, Associate Director

Aspen Institute Congressional International Program
1333 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 736 5822; Fax. 202 785 2737

Association of Episcopal Colleges

Main areas of interest: Student/faculty exchanges at the university (BA) level); Does not fund: Not a funding agency.

Contact Ms. Linda A. Chisholm, President

Association of Episcopal Colleges

815 Second Avenue, New York, NY 10017-4594

Tel. 212 986 0989; Fax. 212 986 5039

Carnegie Council on Ethics and International Affairs

Main areas of interest: The Carnegie Leadership Program (CLP)--in the form of seminars,

luncheons, and dinners--provides a forum for discussion of international business,

economics, foreign policy, and politics; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Audna England, Vice President

Carnegie Council on Ethics and International Affairs

170 East 64th Street, New York, NY 10021 Tel. 212 838 4120; Fax. 212 752 2432

CDR Associates

Main areas of interest: Developing democratic institutions; conflict management and resolution of multi-party political or ethnic disputes; provides training, consultation, and dispute settlement design;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: African Centre for the Constructive Resolution of Disputes (ACCORD)

c / o University of Durban-Westville

Room E3-309 / 311, Private Bag X54001, Durban 4000

Tel. 031 820 2816

Contact: Dr. Christopher Moore, Partner

Ms. Mary Margaret Golten, Partner

Ms. Susan Wildau, Partner

CDR Associates

100 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 12, Boulder, CO 80302

Tel. 303 442 7367; Fax. 303 442 7442

Educational Testing Service (ETS)

Main areas of interest: Admissions tests; test preparation; scholarship funding; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact in SA: Educational Opportunities Council (EOC)

Hunts Corner, 2nd floor, 20 New South Street, Johannesburg 2001

Tel. 011 331 8311

Contact: Dr. Barbara Kirsh, Director, Corporate Quality Assurance

Educational Testing Service

36x, Carnegie Center, Princeton, NJ 08540 Tel. 66, 951 1745; Fax. 609 951 6240

Fairchilde International Library Institute (FILI)

Main areas of interest: Seminar, training, and research; FILI provides training of

paraprofessionals, especially in the library and education fields;

Does not fund: FILI charges a fee for its services;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: FILI is a micro-mini corporation with a very small budget.

Contact: Mrs. M.E. Chitty, Director

Fairchilde International Library Institute

113-115 West Seventh Street, Plainfield, NJ 07060

Tel. 908 769 0572; 908 769 0030

Institute on Religion and Democracy (IRD)

Main areas of interest: Racial reconciliation, democracy, and economic development;

education on South Africa in the U.S. church world:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Lonni Jackson, Research Associate

Institute on Religion and Democracy

1331 M Street, N.W., Suite 900, Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 393 3200; Fax. 202 638 4948

International Institutes on Peace Education

Main areas of interest: Peace and human rights education; teacher training in multicultural and antiracism education:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; organizes and conducts institutes for educators and activists:

Affiliations: Global Education Associates; Peace Education Commission, International

Peace Research Association; World Council for Curriculum and Instruction;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Betty Reardon, Dr. Robert Zuber

International Institutes on Peace Education

Peace Education Program, Box 171, Teachers College

Columbia University, New York, NY 10027 Tel. 212 678 3972; Fax. 212 678 4048

Investor Responsibility Research Center (IRRC) South Africa Review Service

Main areas of interest: International business in South Africa; political developments in South Africa;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Directors: Lilyan Affinito; Maryellen F. Andersen; Jerome W. Anderson; William M. Bethke; Margaret Carroll; Barbara D. Fineberg; George F. Keane; Patricia Lipton; Gary W. Malone; Frank P.L. Minard; Roger F. Murray; Allan R. Nelson; Paul M. Neuhauser; Betty M. Sheets; Lawrence Speidell; Clinton L. Stevenson; Patricia Carry Stewart; Judith A. Studer; Michael L. Troutman; Albert J. Wilson; Carol A. Zipkin;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Proprietary.

Contact: Ms. Meg Voorhes, South Africa Review Service

Investor Responsibility Research Center

1755 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 234 7500; Fax. 202 332 8570

Museum Research Associates

Main areas of interest: Computerized information management/documentation of museum

collections;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Ron Kley / Ms. Jane Radcliffe, Partners and Co-Proprietors

Museum Research Associates

11 Spring Street, Hallowell, ME 04347

Tel. 207 395 4837

Research Triangle Institute

Main areas of interest: Education policy; urban planning and development policy;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. H. Healey

Research Triangle Institute

P.O. Box 12194, Research Triangle Park, NC 27709-2194

Tel. 919 541 6341; Fax. 919 541 6621

World Council for Curriculum and Instruction (WCCI)

Main areas of interest: Global/international education; peace education;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; gives a small amount of money to its regional

networks (including its African section);

Trustees: Officers, executive committee, and regional representatives are elected every

three year.;

Contact: Dr. Estela Matriano

World Council for Curriculum and Instruction (WCCI)

College of Education, University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, OH 45221

Tel. 513 556 3573; Fax. 513 556 2483

Trade unions/trade union-related service organizations

African-American Labor Center

Main areas of interest: Trade union development;

Does not fund: Nontrade union programs;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Michael Lescault, Regional Director

African-American Labor Center

1400 K Street, N.W., Suite 700, Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 789 1020; Fax. 202 842 0730

United Mine Workers of America

Main areas of interest: Trade union solidarity;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: National Union of Mineworkers of South Africa

P.O. Box 2424, Johannesburg 2000

Contact: Mr. Kenneth Zinn

United Mine Workers of America

900 15th Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 842 7284; Fax. 202 842 7227

Universities/Colleges

Boston College

Main areas of interest: Scholarship assistance to South African students;

Does not fund: Individual applications; tuition scholarship is reserved for students who

are nominated by IIE's SAEP;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Spencer MacDonald, Admissions and Financial Aid

Boston College

Chestnut Hill, MA 02167

Tel. 617 552 8000; Fax. 617 552 8711

Bradley University

Main areas of interest: One full scholarship plus room and board; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Alan Galsky, Provost / Student Affairs

Bradley University

102 Swords Hall, Peoria, IL 61625 Tel. 309 677 3140; Fax. 309 677 2797

Brown University

Main areas of interest: Brings South African students and middle-career professionals to Brown for study;

Does not fund: Does not accept individual applications--works through IIE's SAEP and

the University of Cape Town;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Professor Newell Stultz

Brown University
Providence, RI 02912

Tel. 401 863 1567; Fax. 401 863 7018

Clark Atlanta University

Main areas of interest: Training, technical assistance; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Earl Picard, Director, Office of International Training

Clark Atlanta University

James P. Brawley at Fair Street, S.W., Atlanta, GA 30314

Tel. 404 880 8614; Fax. 404 880 8625

Clark University Task Force for Sustainable Development in Africa

Main areas of interest: Research relating to sustainable development in Africa, including South Africa--especially re economy (South African land reform), regional integration (southern Africa); health, environment, education, gender relations, and the state;

Does not fund: Difficult to fund regional integration research;

Affiliations of Coordinators: Education--Michigan State University; Economics and environment--Clark University; Regional integration--American University; Gender relations--University of North Carolina; Health--Carter-Woodson Institute; State--Howard University;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Informal relationship with the ANC Economics Department

Contact: Dr. Ann Seidman, Chairperson

Task Force for Sustainable Development in Africa International Development Program, Clark University

950 Main Street, Worcester, MA 01610 Tel. 508 793 7634; Fax. 508 793 8820

College of Wooster

Main areas of interest: One scholarship for one student from South Africa every four years;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact Ms. Valerie Baldwin, Associate Director of Admissions / Director of

International Admissions College of Wooster Wooster, Ohio 44691

Tel. 216 263 2270; Fax. 216 263 2594

Consortium for International Development (CID)

Main areas of interest: International development, research, training, & technical assistance in the areas of environment & resource management; education; agriculture & rural development; human health & nutrition; irrigation & water resources; management & business development;

Trustees: Two trustees are appointed by each of the following member universities: Arizona; California State Polytechnic; Pomona; Colorado State; Hawaii at Manoa; Idaho; New Mexico State; Oregon State; Texas Tech; Utah State; Washington State; and Wyoming. Contact: Dr. Ronald V. Curtis, Executive Director

Consortium for International Development (CID)

6367 East Tanque Verde, Suite 200, Tucson, AZ 85715-3832

Tel. 602 885 0055; Fax. 602 886 3244

Cornell University

Main areas of interest: Has provided special financial assistance to qualified South African students for 20 years; most of the fellowships have been for master's level study in applied areas such as science or math education, city or regional planning, or nutrition; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact:

Dr. Alison Cusurett, Dean, Graduate School Sage Graduate Center, Cornell University Ithaca, NY 14853-6201

Tel. 607 255 5810; Fax. 607 255 1816

Hamilton College

Main areas of interest: Outstanding undergraduate students; Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Dr. Douglas C. Thompson, Dean of Admissions Hamilton College

198 College Hill Road, Clinton, NY 13323 Tel. 315 859 4421; Fax. 315 859 4457

Hartford Seminary

Main areas of interest: Educational programs relating to social justice in South Africa, including student involvement in travel seminars; research and educational programs on interfaith issues, especially Christian-Muslim relations; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Dr. Barbara Brown Zikmund, President

Hartford Seminary

77 Sherman Street, Hartford, CT 06105 Tel. 203 232 4451; Fax. 203 236 8570

Harvard Graduate School of Education

Main areas of interest: Educational program and curriculum development with special interest in math, science, and thinking skills;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; does not accept individual applications; is completely "soft-funded" in all its work;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Dr. David Perkins, Co-Director, Project Zero Harvard Graduate School of Education

315 Longfellow Hall, 13 Appian Way, Cambridge, MA 02138

Tel. 617 495 4376; Fax. 617 496 4288

Harvard School of Public Health

Main areas of interest: Public health;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Cassandra A. Simmons, Assistant Dean for Students

Harvard School of Public Health

677 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02115 Tel. 617 432 1036; Fax. 617 432 3184

Harvard/South Africa Fellowship Program (HSAFP)

Main areas of interest: The Harvard/South Africa Fellowship Program is a one-year study

fellowship;

Does not fund: Family support:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Dennis Venter, Bursary Secretary

South African Institute of Race Relations (SAIRR)

P.O. Box 32597, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 339 3193; Fax. 011 399 1834

Contact: Professor Alan Heimert

Harvard | South Africa Fellowship Program 14 Quincy Street, Cambridge, MA 02138 Tel. 617 495 4224; Fax. 617 495 4224

Indiana University

Main areas of interest: An exchange of learning skills professionals/academic support program staff between Indiana University and the University of the Witwatersrand; distance education (instruction and grading) for Khanya College, Johannesburg; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Prof. Peter Hunter, Director, Academic Support Programme

University of the Witwatersrand, Private Bag 3. Wits 2050

Mr. Robert Segall, Director

Khanya College, 236 Bree Street, Johannesburg 2001

Contact: Dr. Patrick O'Meara, Director, African Studies Program

Indiana University

Woodburn Hall 221, Bloomington, IN 47405 Tel. 812 855 6825; Fax. 812 855 6734

Iowa State University

Main areas of interest: Co-funded scholarships for undergraduate study at Iowa State

University (through IIE's SAEP);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Deborah L. Vance, Office of International Students and Scholars

Iowa State University

E.O. Building, Ames, Iowa 50011 Tel. 515 294 1120; Fax. 515 294 8263

John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University

Main areas of interest: Training programs/workshops/conferences dealing with public administration and public policy analysis and development; graduate students and academic exchange/case development in areas of public administration: Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Gail Leftwich, Esq., Associate Director Program on South Africa

John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University

79 John F. Kennedy Street, Cambridge, MA 02138

Tel. 617 496 6234; Fax. 617 496 6241

Lafayette College

Main areas of interest: Open university scholarships in South Africa; Does not fund: Not a funding agency and does not receive applications; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Robert I. Rotberg, President

Lafayette College

316 Markle Hall, Easton, PA 18042 Tel. 215 250 5200; Fax. 215 250 0157

Luther College

Main areas of interest: Scholarships for undergraduate students;

Does not fund: The College cannot fund the difference between the financial assistance it provides and the fees (tuition, board, and room); it also does not fund books, health insurance, travel, or any personal expenses;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Sonya Lund, Director of International Student Programs

Luther College

700 College Drive, Decorah, IA 52101 Tel. 319 389 1014; Fax. 319 387 1060

Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)

Main areas of interest: Science and engineering; architecture, urban studies, political science, economics, linguistics, and philosophy: Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

MIT Rm. 3-132

77 Massachusetts Avenue, Cambridge, MA 02139

Dr. Frank E. Perkins, Dean of Graduate School

Tel. 617 253 1957; Fax. 617 253 3620

Miami University

Main areas of interest: Tuition and fee waivers to black South African students referred to

the University for graduate admission by the IIE under the SAEP;

Does not fund: Anything not related too academic study; Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Donald N. Nelson, Director, International Education Services

Miami University Oxford. OH 45056

Tel. 513 529 2512; Fax. 513 529 7383

Michigan State University African Studies Center

Main areas of interest: Linkage with South African universities from MSU; academic

studies of South and southern Africa at MSU;

Does not fund: Fellowships for students, which are only found through academic

departments;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. David S. Wiley, Director

African Studies Center, Michigan State University (MSU) 100 International Center, MSU, East Lansing, MI 48824-1035

Mills College

Main areas of interest: Financial aid for students attending Mills College;

Does not fund: No funding to other charitable organizations:

Trustees:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Janet H. McKay, President

Mills College

5000 MacArthur Boulevard, Oakland, CA 94613

Tel. 510 430 2255; Fax. 510 430 3314

Morehouse College

Main areas of interest: Morehouse is a private black college (HBCU) interested in establishing institutional linkages for liberal arts (i.e., nontechnical) exchanges of student and faculty; its academic strengths are business, economics, physical and social sciences; pre-medicine, and pre-law;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency; is not able to accept individual student applications; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Way under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr, Lee Gallo, Director, Office of International Education

Morehouse College

830 Westview Drive, S.W., Atlanta, GA 30314 Tei. 404 681 2800; Fax. 404 215 2684

Northwestern University

Main areas of interest: Scholarships for black South African students; supported research leaves for black South African university faculty members--residence in Evanston, Illinois required;

Does not fund: Individual applications—all scholarship recipients come to the University through the SAEP (with applications submitted to the EOC in South Africa); Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Dr. John D. Margolis, Associate Provost

Northwestern University Evanston, IL 60208

Tel. 708 491 7040; Fax. 708 491 4434

Ohio State University

Main areas of interest: A one-year program for black South African scholars to complete graduate study (one scholar per year);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Dr. Ada Demb, Vice Provost for International Affairs

The Ohio State University

300 Oxley Hall, 1712 Neil Avenue, Columbus, OH 43210

Tel. 614 292 3821; Fax. 614 292 4273

Ohio University

Main areas of interest: Academic study of South and southern Africa; development education; communication and development; international administration; technical assistance;

Does not fund: Individual scholarship applicants may apply to appropriate departments; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact:

Dr. Felix V. Gagliano, Center for International Studies

Ohio University Athens, Ohio 45701

Tel. 614 593 1840; Fax. 614 593 1837

Pratt Institute Center for Community and Environmental Development (PICCED)

Main areas of interest: Training and education; technical assistance; policy analysis and advocacy; international exchange;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency:

Advisory Committee: Roger Williams (Chair); Shelby Chodos; Myrta Cuadra; Pablo Eisenberg; Arthur Emil; Roberta Gratz; Gary Hattem; Stephen Heyman; Susan Motley; Arthur Rosenblatt; Patricia Swann; Charles Wilson;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact:

Mr. Ron Shiffman, Director

PICCED

379 DeKalb Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11205

Princeton University

Main areas of interest: Two types of fellowships for black South Africans--one a traditional Ph.D. program and the other for advanced doctoral students or recent recipients of a Ph.D. for one year to advance their research in all fields available at Princeton; The South African Academic Initiatives Program has limited resources for these two fellowships, but is particularly interested in attracting South Africans doing advanced work in physics, architecture, engineering, biology and chemistry, economics, and public and international affairs;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Laurel B. Harvey, Assistant Vice President

Princeton University

318 Nassau Hall, Princeton, NJ 08544 Tel. 609 258 3045; Fax. 609 258 1294

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

Main areas of interest: One tuition award for South African applicant in departments that offer Ph.D. programs:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Gary Judd

Vice Provost for Academic Affairs and Dean of the Graduate School

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute 110 8th Street, Troy, NY 12180-3590 Tel. 518 276 6487; Fax. 518 276 4061

Rutgers University

Main areas of interest: Faculty and student exchange; research; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. James Johnson, Director, International Programs

Rutgers University

172 College Avenue, New Brunswick, NJ 08903

Tel. 908 932 7263; Fax. 908 932 6723

School for International Training

Main areas of interest: University liaison for S.A. study abroad (SIT establishes affiliations with South African universities for the purposes of study abroad programs);

Does not fund: Does not fund independently;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: University of Durban-Westville Public Affairs Office

University of the Western Cape Senate Foreign Relations Committee

Contact: Mr. Costas Christ, Regional Director, Africa

School for International Training Kipling Road, Brattleboro, VT 05302-0676 Tel. 802 257 7751; Fax 802 258 3296

Smith College

Main areas of interest: Offers two full scholarships per year for black, "colored, " or Indian South African women, whose nominations come from personal and institutional referral within South Africa and from institutions in the U.S.; Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$150,000-300,000.

Contact: Mr. Charles L. Johnson, Associate Treasurer

c/o Treasurer's Office,

Smith College, Northampton, MA 01063 Tel. 413 585 2202; Fax. 413 585 2206

Southern Methodist University School of Law

Main areas of interest: Professional exchange with South African law faculties and graduate South African lawyers as LLM students; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Professor Howard Taubenfeld

SMU Law School Dallas, TX 75775

Tel. 214 692 2598; Fax. 214 692 4330

Stanford University

Main areas of interest: South African faculty exchange; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Committee on South African Faculty Initiatives

Stanford University Center for African Studies Encina Hall, Room 208, Stanford, CA 94305-6055

Tel. 415 723 0295; Fax. 415 725 2592

State University of New York

Main areas of interest: Student exchange programs; internships with state agencies; Does not fund: SUNY cannot provide tuition waivers, but some of its units may be able to provide some student aid and work possibilities; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Carl E. Meacham, Assistant Provost of International Programs

State University of New York SUNY Plaza, Albany, NY 12246 Tel. 518 443 5127; Fax. 518 443 5126

Thunderbird--The American Graduate School of International Management

Main areas of interest: Student scholarships (students accepted for admission may apply);

research on South African business;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Brian Bates, Vice President, Student Affairs

Thunderbird, Glendale, AZ 85306 Tel. 602 978 7210; Fax. 602 439 5432

Tucker Foundation, Dartmouth College

Main areas of interest: Use of Dartmouth education resources to benefit southern Africa; internships in southern Africa; professional and student exchange programs in health and environment; scholarships at Dartmouth:

Does not fund: Cannot fund individuals or programs external to Dartmouth;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. James P. Breeden

Tucker Foundation, Dartmouth College

6154 South Fairbanks, Hanover, NH 03755-3568

Tel. 603 646 3350; Fax. 603 646 1599

United States International University (USIU)

Main areas of interest: USIU is currently in the process of developing a Presidential Scholarship to be awarded to one recipient from each country or recognized nation; it currently awards scholarships only to domestic American students, but does refer foreign nationals to outside agency scholarships;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact Ms. Darla Wilson, Director of Admissions

United States International University

Office of Admissions, 10455 Pomerado Road, San Diego, CA 921231

Tel. 619 693 4772; Fax. 619 693 8562

University of California at Berkeley (UCB)

Main areas of interest: Urban/rural/regional development research and policy; community organization; land rights; education;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Drs. Pillay, Padayachee, and Vaughn

Urban Policy Research Centre

University of Durban-Westville, Durban

Contact: Dr. David Szanton, Executive Director

International and Area Studies, Office of the Dean

University of California, Berkeley, CA 94720

Tel. 510 642 5284; Fax. 510 642 9466

University of California at Los Angeles (UCLA)

Main areas of interest: Partial support to South African students at UCLA--primarily juniors, seniors, and graduate students with funding from another organization for living expenses, books, health insurance (e.g., UNEPTSA);

Does not fund: Anything other than the above;

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. Carol Saltzman, Associate Dean

International Students & Scholars, UCLA

Los Angeles, CA 90024-1379

Tel. 310 825 1684; Fax. 310 206 3175

University of Connecticut

Main areas of interest: Research linkages with South African universities; scholarships/fellowships for graduate students from South Africa; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Amii Omara-Otunnu, Director

Center for Contemporary African Studies, University of Connecticut

Storrs, CT 06269-1182

Tel. 203 486 4687; Fax. 203 486 2963

University of Delaware

Main areas of interest: Offers a limited number of tuition scholarships to qualified South African students on the undergraduate and graduate levels; candidates are referred from the IIE's SAEP.

Contact: Ms. Susan C. Lee, Acting Director, International Center

University of Delaware

4 Kent Way, Newark, DE 19716-6410 Tel. 302 831 2115; Fax. 302 831 2123

University of Hartford

Main areas of interest: Faculty, student exchange, research; involvement in South African educational development initiatives;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Timothy Brown, Special Assistant to the President

Dr. Susan Coleman, Coordinator of International Activities

University of Hartford

200 Bloomfield Avenue, West Hartford, CT 06405

Tel. 203 768 5180; Fax. 203 768 4070

University of Illinois

Main areas of interest: Faculty fellowships; student scholarships;

Members of consortium for U.S.-South Africa Faculty Fellowship Program: Northwestern

University; Ohio State University; University of Illinois at Chicago; University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign; University of Pennsylvania; University of Southern California; Does **not** fund: Students and faculty wishing to apply to the U of I program should contact the EOC:

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Partner in SA: Father Buti Tlhagale

Educational Opportunities Council (EOC) Hunts Corner, 2nd floor, 20 New South Street

Johannesburg 2001

Contact: Dr. Thomas M. Eakman, Executive Assistant Vice President

University of Illinois

377 Henry Administration Building, 506 S. Wright Street, Urbana, IL 61801 Tel. 217 333 3077; Fax. 217 333 3072

University of Iowa

Main areas of interest: Full noncash tuition scholarships for completion of one degree (two such scholarships are available through IIE's SAEP each year):

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000

Contact: Dr. John Rogers, Foreign Student Adviser

Office of International Education

University of Iowa

120 International Center, Iowa City, IA 52242

Tel. 319 335 0335; Fax. 319 335 2021

University of Michigan South Africa Initiative

Main areas of interest: Faculty, student, and administration exchange; research collaborative; curriculum and program development;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. Charles D. Moody, Sr., Executive Director

University of Michigan South Africa Initiative

6070 Fleming Administration Building, Ann Arbor, MI 48109-1340

Tel. 313 764 3982

University of Missouri System

Main areas of interest: Faculty exchange; tertiary education planning;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: University of the Western Cape (UWC)

Private Bag X17, Bellville 7535

Tel. 021 959 2884

Contact: Dr. Ronald J. Turner, Chief of Staff

University of Missouri System

Office of the President, 321 University Hall, Columbia, MO 65211 Tel. 314 882 2011; Fax. 314 882 2721

University of Missouri-Kansas City

Main areas of interest: Academic exchange with the University of the Western Cape;

participant in the IIE's SAEP;

Does not fund: No direct grants to individuals or organizations:

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: University of the Western Cape (UWC)

Private Bag X17, Bellville 7535

<u>Contact:</u> Professor Henry A. Mitchell, Associate Vice Chancellor

University of Missouri-Kansas City

5100 Rockhill Road, Kansas City, MO 64110 Tel. 816 235 1059; Fax. 816 235 1310

University of Notre Dame

Main areas of interest: Graduate school tuition scholarships;

Does not fund: Law, MBA;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Peter Diffley, Assistant Dean

University of Notre Dame Graduate School 312 Main Building, Notre Dame, IN 46556 Tel. 219 239 8422; Fax. 219 239 6630

University of Notre Dame Law School, Center for Civil and Human Rights

Main areas of interest: The Center aims to provide graduate fellowships to South African lawyers and educators wishing to participate in the International Human Rights Law Program; through its involvement in human rights research and education, the Center is seeking to develop institutional links with universities in South Africa; Does not fund: Its financial support for South African lawyers and educators wishing to do graduate research and internships in International Human Rights Law is extremely

do graduate research and internships in International Human Rights Law is extremely limited;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: The Bradlow Foundation

70 Eloff Street, Johannesburg 2001 Attention: Justice Goldstone

Contact: Mr. Garth Meintjes, Assistant Director

Center for Civil and Human Rights

Notre Dame Law School Notre Dame, IN 46556

Tel. 219 239 8544; Fax. 219 239 6371

Vanderbilt University

Main areas of interest: IIE's South African Education Program; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Graduate School

Vanderbilt University

411 Kirkland Hall, Nashville, TN 37240 Tel. 615 322 2639; Fax. 615 322 3728

Yale University Southern African Research Program (SARP)

Main areas of interest: Southern Africa;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Dr. Leonard Thompson, Director

Southern African Research Program (SARP) 89 Trumbull Street, New Haven, CT 06520 Tel. 203 432 3271; Fax. 203 432 3272

U.S. support organizations -- 501(c)(3)s

African Enterprise

Main areas of interest: Christian evangelism; aid and development;

Does not fund: Anything other than the above:

Officers of the board: Archibald Hart (Chairman); Bruce Bare (Vice Chairman);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$250,000.

Office in SA: Dr. Michael Cassidy, International Team Leader

Africa Enterprise

P.O. Box 647, Pietermaritzburg 3200 Tel. 0331 471 911; Fax. 0331 471 915

Contact: Mr. Andy Lay, Executive Director

African Enterprise

P.O. Box 727, Monrovia, CA 91017 Tel. 818 357 8811; Fax. 818 359 2069

Africa Fund

Main areas of interest: Education in the U.S. about southern Africa, especially South

Africa and the anti-apartheid struggle; Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees: Tilden J. LeMelle (Chair); Marsha Bonner (Vice Chair); Marvin Rich (Treasurer); Robert Boehm; William Booth; Elizabeth Calvin; Victor Gotbaum; J.L.S.

Holloman; George Houser; M. Wm. Howard; Margaret Marshall; Frank Montero; Andrew

Norman; Peter Weiss;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Jennifer Davis, Executive Director

Africa Fund

198 Broadway, New York, NY 10038 Tel. 212 962 1210; Fax. 212 964 8570

African Arts Fund

Main areas of interest: Scholarships for South African artists of all genres, at the masters level in U.S. universities where tuition waivers are received, and for arts administrators; Does not fund: Anything outside of arts and culture;

Advisory Board: Athol Fugard; Nadine Gordimer; Gavin Jantjes; John Kani; Galway Kinnell; KRS One; Peter Magubane; Hugh Masekela; Mark Mathabane; Zakes Mokae; Mbongeni Ngema; Kenneth Noland; Susan Soutag;

Officers of the Board: Mbulelo Mzamane (Chairman); Jennifer Roth (Secretary); Wendell Alcenat (Treasurer);

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: African Arts Fund

240 Bree Street, 3rd floor, Johannesburg 2001

Contact: Helen Rubino, Director of Development

African Arts Fund

P.O. Box 20765, New York, NY 10025-1516 Tel. 212 662 9331; Fax. 212 662 9331

African Medical Mission

Main areas of interest: Education and training of South African doctors and health care workers and providing medical services to the people of Transkei;
Trustees: C.C.P. McConnachie; Phillip A. Sellers (Chairman USA); Spencer Campbell;
Size of budget relating to SA activities: Approximately \$100,000.

Office in SA: Dr. C.C.P. McConnachie, Mission Coordinator in Transkei

c/o Umtata General Hospital

Private Bag X-5014, Umtata, Transkei

Tel. 0471 22568

Contact: Mr. Spencer Campbell, Executive Director

African Medical Mission

P.O. Box 2756, Hendersonville, NC 28793 Tel. 704 696 9930; Fax. 704 696 8457

American Friends of NEST, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Builds an endowment the income of which will be used for scholarship assistance for students attending NEST schools;
Trustees: Reuben F. Richards (Chairman); Sal. G. Marzullo; A. Michael Rosholt (Johannesburg); Henry R. Slack (London); Elizabeth W. Smith; Paul Wright;

Office in SA: Mr. Richard Hawkins, Executive Director New Era Schools Trust (NEST) P.O. Box 639, Randburg 2125

Tel. 011 886 0338; Fax. 011 886 0338

Contact: Mr. Richard R. Davis, Vice President and Treasurer

American Friends of NEST, Inc.

630 Fifth Avenue, 39th floor, New York, NY 10111

Tel. 212 708 9334; Fax. 212 969 9032

American Working Theatre

Main areas of interest: Providing arts-based teacher training for South African literacy

teachers;

Does not fund: Only funds teachers;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000

Partner in SA: READ Educational Trust

P.O. Box 30994, Braamfontein 2017

SPEAK

P.O. Box 45213, Mayfair 2018

Contact: Mr. Mark Rittenberg, Chairman

American Working Theatre (formerly NACALD)

2842 Prince Street, Berkeley, CA 94705 Tel. 510 547 6750; Fax. 510 547 6750

Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop

Main areas of interest: A collaboration between the Bread Loaf School of English, a graduate school of Middlebury College, and Phillips Academy, a secondary preparatory school, ABLWW offers U.S. and black South African public school teachers professional development designed to help them initiate educational reform;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Ms. Bernadette Mosala, Educational Programmes Centre

Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop South Africa

P.O. Box 58, Crown Mines 2025

Contact: Mr. Lou Bernieri, Director

Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop Phillips Academy, Andover, MA 01810 Tel. 508 749 4386; Fax. 508 749 4526

Ashoka: Innovators for the Public

Main areas of interest: Supports individuals who are initiating projects for social change in a variety of fields, including conflict resolution, women's issues, income generation, housing, education, human rights, and community development;

Does not fund: Research;

Trusters: William Drayton; Richard E. Cavanagh; C. William Carter; Julien Phillips;

Steven Hadley; Ashok Advani; Fred Hehuwat; Wimar Witoelar; Kirtee Shah; Gloria De Souza;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. David Bonbright

Development Resources Centre P.O. Box 6079, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 838 7504; Fax. 011 838 6310

Contact: Ms. Naomi Meyer, Program Assistant

Ashoka: Innovators for the Public

1700 North Moore Street, Suite 1920, Arlington, VA 22209

Tel. 703 527 8300; Fax. 703 527 8383

Association for International Practical Training (AIPT)

Main areas of interest: AIPT's focus is international on-the-job training exchanges between students or professionals in the United States and other countries, including South Africa:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: IAESTE--South Africa (member of The International Association for the

Exchange of Students for Technical Experience)

P.O. Box 93480, Yeoville 2143

Contact: Mr. Michael Mathes, Information Officer

Association for International Practical Training (AIPT)

10400 Little Patuxent Parkway, Suite 250, Columbia, MD 21044

Tel. 410 997 2200; Fax. 410 992 3924

Committee of Concerned Scientists Inc.

Main areas of interest: Protection and advancement of the human rights of scientists, engineers, and health professionals; helping newly arrived colleagues find professional employment in the U.S.

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Dorothy Hirsch, Executive Director

Committee of Concerned Scientists Inc. 53-34 208th Street, Bayside, NY 11364 718 229 2813; Fax. 718 229 7540

Committee for Health in Southern Africa (CHISA)

Main areas of interest: Health of the deprived majority, health rights and related human rights, and the role of health professionals and professional organizations in South Africa; Does not fund: Individuals or projects initiated outside its board;

Trustees: Mervyn W. Susser (President); H. Jack Geiger (Vice President); Nanucku

Lubangu (Secretary); Violet P. Cherry (Treasurer);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. Andy McCord, Coordinator

Committee for Health in Southern Africa

Unit 16, 630 West 168th Street, New York, NY 10034

Tel. 212 305 6866; Fax. 212 740 3187

Conflict Management Group (CMG)

Main areas of interest: Conflict resolution/management;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Wilgespruit Fellowship Centre

P.O. Box 81, Roodepoort 1725

Tel. 011 768 1310; Fax. 011 764 1468

Contact: Ms. Diana Chigas

Conflict Management Group

20 University Road, Cambridge, MA 02138 Tel. 617 354 5444; Fax. 617 354 8467

Conflict Management Initiatives

Main areas of interest: Provides technical assistance in mediation and conflict management; provides books, training materials, and research materials from the U.S. re dispute resolution and conflict management (through the U.S.-South African Dispute Resolution Books Project);

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Richard Salem is Project Administrator of the U.S.-South Africa Dispute

Resolution Books Project, which is sponsored in the U.S. by Conflict Management Initiatives and in South Africa by the Independent Mediation Service of South Africa (IMSSA--011 726 7104) and the Community Dispute Resolution Trust at the Centre for Applied Legal Studies at Wits (011 339)

6640);

Contact: Mr. Richard Salem, President

Conflict Management Initiatives 1225 Oak Avenue, Evanston, IL 60202 Tel. 708 869 2244; Fax. 708 328 2064

Creative Response

Main areas of interest: Offers innovative youth exchange programs in the creative and performing arts (all programs are multiracial involving U.S. and South African participants); works with schools and other organizations to organize international group exchange programs;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Trustees:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Ms. Alice Coetzee

IDASA

299 Duncan Street, Hatfield 0083

Tel. 012 342 1476

Mr. Reginald Mashiane

1260 Inyathi Street, Mamelodi Gardens 0122

Tel. 012 801 6958

Contact: Mr. Steve Riffkin, Artistic Director

Creative Response

9502-b Lee Highway, Fairfax, VA 22031 Tel. 703 385 4494; Fax. 703 273 6568

Friends of IDASA

Main areas of interest: Encouraging democratic governance in South Africa through advocacy and educational programmes;

Trustees: Wayne Fredericks (President); Robert McNamara; William Milliken; Mabel Smythe; Theodore M, Hesburgh; Catherine Pino Miller; Richard M. Moose (Vice President); Cyrus R. Vance (Chairman); Charles W. Muller (Secretary and Treasurer); Size of budget relating to SA activities; Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. David Screen, Executive Director

Institute for a Democratic Alternative in South Africa (IDASA)

Hill House, 1 Penzance Road, Mowbray 7700

Tel. 021 47 3127; Fax. 021 47 7458

Contact: Mr. Charles W. Muller, Secretary and Treasurer

Friends of IDASA

477 Madison Avenue, 6th floor, New York, NY 10022

Tel. 212 752 6515; Fax. 212 752 6518

Friends of SOS Children's Villages Inc.

Main areas of interest: To provide long-term assistance to children who have no families or whose families cannot care for them; educational programs to entire communities; Parent Education Program (PEP) to enable parents to encourage children;

Does not fund: Only funds SOS Children's Villages activities;

Trustees: Lis K. Brewer (President);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: SOS Children's Village Association South Africa

P.O. Box 22, Randburg 2125

Tel. 011 789 3628; Fax. 011 886 1999

Contact: Ms. Elizabeth Shuman, Executive Director

Friends of SOS Children's Village Inc. 1170 Broadway, New York, NY 10001 Tel. 212 686 0670; Fax. 212 889 6514

Fund for Education in South Africa (FESA)

Main areas of interest: Education programs in South Africa for "marginalized youth;" Does not fund: No grants to individuals or bursaries; during 1993-4, FESA is reformulating its activities and therefore not currently accepting proposals for funding; Trustees: Joyce Brown; Joan B. Campbell; Colin G. Campbell; William D. Carmichael; Henry G. Cisneros; Robert Coles; Jack deGioia; Gay MacDougall; Anthony Marx; Donald McHenry; John Samuel; Douglas H. White; John I. Williams.

Contact:

Professor Anthony Marx, Department of Political Science

Columbia University

420 West 118th Street, Room 701, New York, NY 10027

Get Ahead Foundation USA

Main areas of interest: Raises funds and other support for Get Ahead Foundation South Africa, which provides micro-loans to black South Africans in townships to start their own businesses (micro-enterprise development);

Does not fund: Only funds Get Ahead activities;

Directors: William H. Hayden (Chairman); David I. Boren; Walter C. Carrington (Vice Chairman); Peggy Dulany; Frank E. Ferrari; Wayne Fredericks; William H. Gray, III; Derrick A. Humphries (Secretary/Treasurer); Edward M. Kennedy; Don MacRobert; Sal G. Marzullo; David C. Miller (Vice Chairman); Nthato Motlana; Daniel P. Rose; Israel Skosana; Maurice Tempelsman; Cabell Tennis;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Don MacRobert, Managing Director

Get Ahead Foundation

256 Hill Street, Arcadia 0083

Tel. 012 342 2186; Fax. 012 434 952

Contact:

Mr. Joseph E. McMahon, Executive Director

Get Ahead Foundation USA

1331 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Suite 909, Washington, DC 20004

Tel. 202 662 7411; Fax. 202 662 7035

G.U. Volunteers in South Africa

Main areas of interest: Sends recent graduates to teach in black Catholic schools in South Africa; volunteers teach a variety of subjects in English and direct extra-curricular activities as well; they are provided with training and support from program staff before and during the year of service:

Does not fund: Not a funding agency, but seeks funds for volunteer support and program operation;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Catholic Institute of Education P.O. Box 2083, Southdale 2135

Contact:

Ms. Mina Veazie, Director

Ms. Jamieson B. Davies, Program Coordinator

G.U. Volunteers in South Africa Volunteer and Public Service Center P.O. Box 2255-316 Leavey, Georgetown University, Washington, DC 20057 Tel. 202 687 3703; Fax. 202 687 8940

Independent School South Africa Education Program (ISSAEP)

Main areas of interest: To offer one year secondary school education with the aim of helping young black South African students gain entrance to American universities; each individual school and university agrees to fund the enrolled students' education; Members of the Consortium: (With students currently) Phillips Academy Andover, Beaver Country Day School, Milton Academy, Northfield-Mt. Hermon, St. Paul's School (Concord, NH); (No students currently) Academy of Charlemont, Bryn Mawr School, Deerfield Academy, Gilman School, Phillips Academy Exeter;

Partner in SA: Ms. Bernadette Mosala, Educational Programmes Centre Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop South Africa P.O. Box 58, Crown Mines 2025

Contact: Ms. Katherine V. Halsey, Acting Director

Independent School South Africa Education Program (ISSAEP)

Phillips Academy, Andover, MA 01810 Tel. 508 749 4204; Fax. 508 749 4526

International Women's Media Foundation

Main areas of interest: Enhancing the role of women in the media worldwide; Trustees: Susan King (Co-Chair); Kathy Rushkin (Co-Chair); Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Ellen Morgensteen, Executive Director

International Women's Media Foundation

2775 S. Quincy Street, 4th floor, Arlington, VA 22206

Tel. 703 820 0607; Fax. 703 820 7719

Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law

Main areas of interest: Assistance to human rights litigation in South Africa; technical assistance to leadership groups in South Africa regarding constitutional issues; public education and advocacy work in the U.S. about South Africa;

Trustees: William H. Brown, III; Herbert M. Wachtell; Brooksley E. Born; Goler T. Butcher; Julius L. Chamber; Ramsey Clark; Peter J. Connell; Drew Days, III; John W. Douglas; Conrad K. Harper; Robert H. Kapp; Stuart J. Land; George N. Lindsay; Charles Runyon; Clinton Bamberger;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Contact: Ms. Gay J. McDougall, Director, Southern Africa Project

Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law

1400 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 400, Washington, DC 20005 Tel. 202 371 1212; Fax. 202 842 3211 or 842 0683

Mandela Freedom Fund

Main areas of interest: To support humanitarian and educational projects in South Africa and to educate the U.S. public on the affects of apartheid and the need for a nonracial, unitary democracy in South Africa:

Does not fund: No unsolicited proposals;

Directors: Barbara Lee; Lindiwe Mabuza; Sebeletso Matabane; Sibusiso Nkomo; Cleveland Robinson (President); Harold Rogers; Godfrey Sithole; Yeledth "Cap" Zungu.

Grantee: Mr. Billy Modise, Executive Director

Matla Trust

P.O. Box 7748, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 834 5301; Fax. 011 838 1910

Contact: Mr. Lennox S. Hinds, Executive Director

Mandela Freedom Fund

116 W. 111th Street, New York, NY 10026 Tel. 212 864 4445; Fax. 212 222 2680

Medical Education for South African Blacks (MESAB)

Main areas of interest: Scholarships to black South African students studying health-related disciplines at South African institutions. These disciplines include medicine, nursing, pharmacy, dentistry, nutrition, occupational, physical and speech and hearing therapy, optometry, and dental hygiene; other program areas include educational mentor programs, rural outreach, advanced nurses' training, academic and professional exchanges, and other health-related programs;

Officers of U.S. Board of Directors: Donald Kennedy (Chairman); Jack J. Spitzer (Vice Chairman); Herbert Kaiser (President); Joy D. Kaiser (Executive Vice President & Secretary); Christopher Sherrill (Treasurer);

Size of budget related to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Partner in SA: Mr. Yusuf Dinath, Executive Director

Mr. George Bell, Program Coordinator

MESAB / South Africa 7 York Road, Parktown 2193

Tel. 011 647 2105; Fax. 011 643 4318

Contact: Mr. Herbert Kaiser, President

MESAB

4200 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20016

Tel. 202 364 6727; Fax. 202 364 6788

Medical University of Southern Africa (MEDUNSA) Trust

Main areas of interest: General discretionary funds; student scholarships/bursaries/loans; School of Veterinary Science;

Trustees: In process of completing the Board of Trustees; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Jaap Metz

MEDUNSA Trust 308 Nedbank Gardens

33 Bath Avenue, Rosebank 2196

Tel. 011 880 4945/6; Fax. 011 880 4949

Contact: Mr. John H. Chettle, General Counsel

MEDUNSA Trust, Inc.

P.O. Box 65209, Washington, DC 20035-5209

Tel. 202 457 5115; Fax. 202 457 5151

National Democratic Institute for International Affairs

Main areas of interest: Voter education; political party-building; election monitoring; Trustees: Walter F. Mondale (Chairman); Rachelle Horowitz (Vice Chair); Kenneth F. Melley (Secretary); Marvin F. Weissberg (Treasurer); Elizabeth F. Bagley (Finance Chair Kenneth O. Wollack (President);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Randi Erentzen, Director

Centre for Development Studies

University of the Western Cape, Private Bag X17, Bellville 7535

Tel. 021 959 2151; Fax. 021 959 2317

Contact: Ms. Patricia Keefer, Senior Associate

National Democratic Institute for International Affairs

1717 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W, Suite 503, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 328 3136; Fax. 202 939 3166

National Endowment for Democracy (NED)

Main areas of interest: Human rights; civic education;

Does not fund: Governmental initiatives, organizations, or institutions;

Contact: Mr. Learned Dees

National Endowment for Democracy

1101 15th Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20005

Tel. 202 293 9072; Fax. 202 223 6042

Operation Hunger, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Relief and development; self-help programs; Trustees: Herman Nickel (Chair); Kay Goodman (Vice Chair); Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Mrs. Ina Perlman, National Director

Operation Hunger

P.O. Box 32257, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 403 6750; Fax. 011 403 1386

Contact: Mr. Dan Matthews, Executive Director

Operation Hunger, Inc.

P.O. Box 53357, Washington, DC 20009 Tel. 301 564 9665; Fax. 301 564 9689

Organization of South African Americans and Canadians, Inc. (OSAAC)

Main areas of interest: OSAAC is committed to building bridges between North America and a post-apartheid South Africa;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Area Committees: Business; Computers and Information Systems; Education; Environment and Natural Resources; Health Care; Housing; Media and Culture; Rural Development; Social Services; Sport;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Representatives are not yet formally organized.

Contact: Mr. Laurence Shore

OSAAC

878 West End Avenue, New York, NY 10025 Tel. 212 749 3495; Fax. 212 749 3495

Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries of South Africa

Main areas of interest: Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries of South Africa; student bursaries for Ethembeni, a school in Port Elizabeth for education of black and disadvantaged students;

Size of budget related to SA activities: Under \$100,000;

Partner in SA: Pastors Brian Bird and Sicelo Duze

Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries and Ethembeni Enrichment Centre

P.O. Box 7348, Newton Park 6066 Tel. 041 572 461; Fax. 041 546 120

Contact: Mr. Don Bixler, President and U.S. Director

Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries of South Africa P.O. Box 2123, Westminster, MD 21158-9123 Tel. 410 857 4512; Fax. 410 857 8534

Samancor Foundation USA

Main areas of interest: Various educational programs and facilities; medical and health facilities;

Trustees: Robert N. Pyle (President); Nicholas A. Pyle (Vice President and Treasurer); Claire T. Pyle (Secretary); Johan van der Walt; Hans Smith.

Size of budget related to SA activities: \$1,000,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Johan van der Walt

Samançor Foundation

88 Marshall Street, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 491 7050; Fax. 011 491 7021

Contact: Mr. Robert N. Pyle, President

Samancor Foundation, USA 1223 Potomac Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20007 Tel. 202 333 8190; Fax. 202 337 3809

Sisterhood in Support of Sisters in South Africa

Main areas of interest: Assist two self-help women's organizations in their programs (knitting, quilting, sewing skills, literacy); establish friendship with its South African sisters;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Dr. Gloria I. Joseph

Sisterhood in Support of Sisters in South Africa P.O. Box 1696, Christiansted, St. Croix, USVI 00821

Tel. 809 773 7891; Fax. 809 773 1988

South African Biack Business Development Foundation, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Education/management training; entrepreneurship--joint

venture/alliance facilitation;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Professor S. Prakash Sethi, Executive Director

South African Black Business Development Foundation, Inc.

310 East 12th Street, Suite 1-G, New York, NY 10003

Tel. 212 673 8004

South African Rural Development Support Program, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Provision of information on South Africa in general and rural development (processes, initiatives, historical issues, land issues, technology, etc.) in particular to U.S. interested parties and U.S. public; facilitate access to expertise and professional exchanges between South Africa and the United States;

Does not fund: Not a funding agency;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Mr. Len Abrams, Executive Director

Rural Advice Centre

P.O. Box 358, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 337 6170; Fax. 011 337 8966

Contact: Ms. Lesley McKeen, Executive Director

South African Rural Development Support Program, Inc.

113 Gardners Mill Road, Augusta, GA 30907

Tel. 706 860 1406; Fax. 706 650 2379

Southern Africa Freedom Through Education (SAFTE)

Main areas of interest: External undergraduate scholarships (technical fields) for South Africans and Namibians; programs in cooperation with other U.S.-based and international

scholarship agencies (UNETPSA, AAI);

Does not fund: Nontechnical training; graduate-level education;

Trustees: T.S. Farisani; Pearl Alice Marsh; John Marcum; Anne Poirier; Hari Dillon;

Keith Carson; Danny Glover; Steve Granz;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Anne Poirier, Director

Southern Africa Freedom Through Education

P.O. Box 10172, Berkeley, CA 94709 Tel. 510 652 4311; Fax. 510 655 7440

Southern Africa Legal Services and Legal Education Project, Inc. (SALSLEP)

Main areas of interest: Free legal representation, counselling., and advice for victims of apartheid; support for black community advice offices in townships and remote rural areas; legal education for members of the community and law students and continuing education for lawyers; publications, seminars, and research;

Trustees: James Robertson (President and Treasurer); E. Clinton Bamberger; George M. Burditt; William D. Carmichael; Reuben Clark; William T. Coleman; Peter J. Connell; Lloyd N. Cutler; Mary ann Glendon; A. Leon Higginbotham, Jr.; Nathaniel Jones; James T. Kilbreth, III; Louis Loss; Margaret H. Marshall; Sidney Picker, Jr.; Bernard G. Segal; Judith O. Thomson;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Contact: Ms. Ann L. Satchwill, Executive Director

SALSLEP

2445 M Street, N.W., 5th floor, Washington, DC 20037-1420

Tel. 202 663 6280; Fax. 202 293 5929

St. Barnabas College Fund, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Financial aid for underprivileged children at the secondary level: Trustees: Rachel Belash (President); Mary Carswell (Vice President); Philip Jackson (Secretary); Charles H. Clark; Michael A.S. Corke; Cynthia Curran; James D. Houghton; Robert J. Irwin; Marion S. Kellogg; Hendrick J. Laverge; Alan Lukens; Vincent Mai; Katherine Ockenden; Norton Stevens;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Michael A.S. Corke, Headmaster

St. Barnabas College

P.O. Box 88188, Newclare 2112 Tel. 011 474 2055; Fax. 011 474 2249

Contact: Ms. Rachel Belash

St. Barnabas College Fund, Inc.

85 East India Row, #37C, Boston, MA 02110

Tel. 617 720 2332

Transkei Foundation

Main areas of interest: Health care; education and training;

Trustees: Bam Siboto (President and director); William McCrmpbell, III (Secretary and

director);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Mr. William McCampbell, III

Transkei Foundation

2924 Sloat Road, Pebble Beach, CA 93953 Tel. 408 372 9202; Fax. 408 372 3987

Unitarian Universalist Service Committee

Main areas of interest: As a member of the Africa Peace Tour, it does education work in

the United States on South Africa;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Contact: Ms. Lou Witherite, Director of International Programs

130 Prospect Street, Cambridge, MA 02139 Tel. 617 868 6600; Fax. 617 868 7102

University of Cape Town Fund

Main areas of interest: Financial aid for black students and, more generally, black

advancement in the academic world;

Does not fund: No grants to individuals;

Trustees: Colin Campbell (Chairman); David J.P. Meachin (Vice Chairman); Malcolm Barlow; Stephanie Bell-Rose; William Campbell-Pitt; Wayne Fredericks; Whitney I. Gerard;

Robert H. Gudger; Margaret A. Hamburg; Alice Stone Ilchman; Carroll M. Leevy; Charles

G. McGregor; Randolph W. Nugent; Steven B. Pfeiffer; John Spencer; Maurice Tempelsman; Margaret B. Touborg; Alan J, Pifer (Honorary Chairman):

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Partner in SA: For the UCT Fund, Inc: University of Cape Town; for the Open Society

Scholars Fund: Universities of Cape Town, the Witwatersrand, Natal, Western

Cape, and Rhodes.

Contact: Ms. Margaret B. Touborg, President

University of Cape Town Fund Open Society Scholars Fund

441 Lexington Avenue, Suite 906, New York, NY 10017

Tel. 212 856 0130; Fax. 212 856 9783

University Scholarships for South African Students (USSAS)

Main areas of interest: Scholarships for needy black South African students attending universities in South Africa; arranging for donations of journal subscriptions and text books to South African universities:

Does not fund: Scholarship aid for South African students in the U.S. or elsewhere outside of South Africa;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Mr. Prem Singh

Chair, USSAS-UDW Bursary Committee

University of Durban-Westville Private Bag X54001, Durban 4000

Fax. 031 820 2866

Contact: Dr. Robert Wolff, Executive Director

USSAS

107 Buffam Road, Pelham, MA 01002 Tel. 413 253 5391; Fax. 413 256 8041

Urban Foundation (USA) Inc.

Main areas of interest: Urbanization: community resource centers, housing upgrading, governance; education: pre-school care, adult education, literacy, science education, school construction;

Does not fund: Grants are only to recipients in South Africa;

Trustees: Wayne Fredericks (President); Wilfred D. Koplowitz (Vice President); Harry F. Oppenheimer (Chairman); David B. Bolen; Lauretta J. Bruno (Treasurer); D.L. van Coller; S.M. Motsuenyane; A.M. Rossholt; Henry R. Slack; Cyrus R. Vance; Rawleigh Warner, Jr. Charles W. Muller (Secretary); George R. Grange, II; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. D.L. van Coller, Chief Executive Officer

Urban Foundation

P.O. Box 1198, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 403 5500; Fax. 011 339 3909

Contact: Mr. Charles Muller, Secretary

477 Madison Avenue, 6th floor, New York, NY 10022

Tel. 212 752 6515; Fax. 212 752 6518

U.S. Committee for UNICEF (The United Nations Children's Fund)

Main areas of interest: To increase American awareness of the needs of the world's children and to raise funds for specific UNICEF-assisted programs, which, in South Africa, include analyzing the situation of children and women and addressing their health and nutritional needs, mapping out NGOs and other partners to implement the programs; Trustees: Jimmy Carter and Gerald R. Ford (Honorary Co-Chairs); Hugh Downs (Chair); Ms. Tsugiko Y. Scullion (Executive Vice President); a list of the other independent, nonsalaried Board of Directors is available on request;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: The UNICEF budget is \$2,000,000 for '93-'94.

Office in SA: United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)

c / o U.N. High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR)

P.O. Box 10332, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 331 1091; Fax. 011 331 1231

Contact: Ms. Lynn Stratford, Public Information Manager

U.S. Committee for UNICEF (The United Nations Children's Fund) 333 East 38th Street, New York, NY 10016 Tel. 212 922 2628; Fax. 212 779 1679

U.S. Fund for Leadership Training in Southern Africa

Main areas of interest: Leadership programs--mainly Outward Bound; Council: Charles P. Stetson (President); C. Jackson Blair (Vice President); Charles P. Stetson, Jr. (Treasurer); Pamela S. Blair (Executive Director and Secretary); Melba J. Duncan; John C. Huie; Mary Ann G. Siegel; Newell M. Stultz; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: James Kantor, Director

Outward Bound Association of Southern Africa

P.O. Hogsback 5312 Tel. 0431 24071

Contact: Mr. Charles P. Stetson, President

U.S. Fund for Leadership Training in Southern Africa

P.O. Box 58, Southport, CT 06490 Tel. 203 259 7881; Fax. 203 254 1039

U.S.-South Africa Leadership Development Program (USSALEP)

Main areas of interest: South African human infrastructural development; South African institution-building;

Does not fund: Scholarships for students;

Trustees: Elias Blake, Jr.; George M. Burditt; David Cathcart; Donald L. Duster; Wayne Fredericks; Robert M. Hoen; Lewis M. Hoskins; Helen Kitchen; Colin J. Klipin; J. Bruce Llewellyn; John A. Marcum; Steven McDonald; Sal G. Marzullo; Ned Munger; Alan J. Pifer; J. Stanley Sanders; Ruth L. Sims; W. Willard Wirtz; Size of budget relating to SA activities: Over \$500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Stanley Kahn, South African Director

USSALEP

P.O. Box 32869, Braamfontein 2017 Tel. 011 339 6774; Fax. 011 403 1113

Contact: Mr. Robert M. Hoen, Executive Director

Ms. Lynette B. Soudien, Manager, Finance and Administration

USSALEP

1730 M Street, N,W., #701, Washington, DC 20036

Tel. 202 293 5410; Fax. 202 293 5413

U.S.-South Africa Sister Community Project

Main areas of interest: Community development assistance; teacher training/curricula development (math and science);

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Partner in SA: Ms. Myesha Jenkins

U.S.-South Africa Sister Community Project

P.O. Box 5328, Johannesburg 2000 Tel. 011 834 1677; Fax. 011 834 8385

Contact: Dr. Robert Price

U.S.-South Africa Sister Community Project

2601 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94110

Tel. 415 824 2938; Fax. 415 824 7874

US/Zululand Educational Foundation, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Engineering; legal aid; community outreach; business, commerce, and administration:

Officers and trustees: Leonard F. Llewellyn; George J. Schroll (Vice President, Secretary); Wayne Fredericks (Vice President); Herman E. Nickel; Ronald S. Goldman; Walter E. Williams:

Size of budget relating to SA activities: Under \$100,000.

Office in SA: University of Zululand Foundation

Private Bag X1001, Kwadlangezwa 3886

Contact: Mr. S.G. Marzullo, President

US / Zululand Educational Foundation, Inc.

601 Elkcam Circle, Suite A-2, Marco Island, FL 33937

Tel. 813 642 4466; Fax. 813 642 8774

World Neighbors (WN)

Main areas of interest: Produces training materials based on program experiences related to food production, environmental conservation, community health, family planning, water and sanitation, and small livestock; these filmstrips, flipcharts, newsletters, books and booklets are available at low cost to development programs; solar-charged/battery-powered slide and filmstrip projectors also; free catalogue;

Does not fund: WN does not fund projects in South Africa; it is operational in Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania, Chad, Mali, Togo, Ghana, and Burkina Faso.

Contact: Ms. Deb Johnson, Senior Associate, Development Communications

World Neighbors

4127 N.W. 122nd Street, Oklahoma City, OK 73120

Tel. 405 752 9700; 405 752 9393

WorldTeach, Inc.

Main areas of interest: Provides volunteer teachers, teacher aides, and trainers to schools and NGOs in South Africa; provides volunteer sports coaches to primary schools in Cape Town townships;

Size of budget relating to SA activities: \$100,000 to 500,000.

Office in SA: Mr. Stefan Howells

World Teach / SCORE

P.O. Box 34193, Rhodes Gift 7707 Tel. 021 448 7116; Fax. 021 448 7321

Contact:

Mr. Steve Kirk, Executive Director

World Teach, Inc.

Harvard Institute for International Development 1 Eliot Street, Cambridge, MA 02138-5705 Tel. 617 495 5527; Fax. 617 495 1239

Subject Index

Advocacy, 8 Interfaith work against racism, 28 U.S. foreign policy towards Africa, 1, 4, 5 African studies/development studies, 51 Agriculture, 20 Agricultural production, 24 Demonstration projects, 23 Arts Museum collections, 44 Forforming arts, 23 Scholarships for artists/arts administrators, 45 Women artists, 4 Youth exchange in creative/performing arts, 62 Book donations, 38, 41 Books/educational equipment, 40 Texts, journals, 71 University level books, 30 Bridge building Between North America/post-apartheid South Africa, 68 **Business** (see also Economic development) Business, commerce, and administration, 74 Business packaging/training to facilitate partnerships, 14 Job training/information technology, 16 Entrepreneurship, joint venture/alliance facilitation, 69 Facilitating U.S. support of SA business people of color, 1 International business in South Africa, 43 Micro-loans for micro-enterprises, 64 Private sector business development, 33 Promotion of micro-enterprise, 26 Small enterprise development, 27 Church issues Church missions, 9 Interfaith work against racism, 28 Religious freedom, 11 Religious philanthropy, 22 Work on church, 58 Civil society, 19, Building civil society, 34 Promotion of civil society, 36 Work on civil society, 58 Communication, 10 Community development, 13, 15, 19, 21, 28, 73 Community organizing, 39 Community outreach, 74 Community services, 12 Corporate/community relations/outreach, 32 Strengthening communities, 35

Sustainable community development, 37

```
Computer technology
        Information management/museum collections, 44
        Job training/information technology, 16
Conflict management/resolution, 23, 29, 42, 62
Corporations
        Coordiation of religous institutions on corporate responsibility, 7
        Corporate/community relations.outreach, 32
Culture, 12
Democratization, 43
        Civic education/democratic initiatives and processes, 26
        Civic education, 67
        Democratic forces, 1, 2
        Democratic governance, 63
        Democratic organizations, 6
        Developing democratic institutions, 42
       Developing local structures, 28
       Election monitoring, 67
       Governance, 72
       Voter education, political party-building, 67
Development, 8
       Coverage of development/environmental issues, 17
       Development studies, 51
       Human resource development, 36
       NGO development, 35
       Relating to children (hunger, water, health), 9
       Urban/rural/regional development policy, 54
Diplomacy
       Training in diplomacy, 28
Disabled people, 33
Economic development, 12, 10, 16, 43
       Community economic development, 19
       Loans to cooperative business ventures, 14
       Partnership and small enterprise, 36
Education, 1, 12, 13, 20, 39, 51
       Academic exchange, 48, 56
       Faculty and student exchange, 52, 56
       Academic exchange/public administration 49
       Adult education, 72
       Bursaries
              Higher education in health, agriculture, education, commerce, public
              administration, 23
              Medical school, 66
              Secondary, 68
              Tertiary, 71
       Business skills, 14
       Curriculum reform for preschool, primary, adult basic education, 22
       Distance education, 48
       Education/job training, 12
       Education/training, 16, 51, 70
       Education of U.S. public about Africa/South Africa, 1, 4, 23, 58, 65, 71
       Education, training, professional development, 26
```

```
Education (continued)
       Educational program/curriculum development, 47
       Educational programs on social justice in South Africa, 47
       Educational reform through teacher training, 60
       Elementary, secondary, vocational education in southern Africa, 10
       Education technology, 16
       Educational exchange of all forms, 35
       Educational facilities, 68
       Faculty fellowships for black South Africans, 51, 55
       Faculty exchange, 53, 56
       Fellowships for Ph.D., 52
       Fellowships for advanced research, 52
       One-year study fellowships,48
       Fellowship in international affairs, 20
       Higher education, 18, 19
       Historically black universities, 41
       Improving quality of black higher education, 38
       Internships, 53, 54
       Library training, 42
       Literacy, 36, 72
              Arts-based training in, 60
       Management training, 69
       Marginalized youth, 64
       Materials development for preschool, primary, adult education, 22
       Nonformal education, 34
       Open university scholarships, 49, 71
       Peace education, 43, 44
       Pre-school care, 72
       Pre-tertiary education in rural areas, 19
       Primary education demonstration projects, 23
       Private nonracial schools, 41
       Science education, 72
       Scholarships for black South Africans, 32, 45, 4747, 48, 50, 51, 55, 56
              External, technical. undergraduate, 69
              For refugees, 38
              Fulbright scholarships, 29
              Graduate, 10, 49, 50, 51, 55
       School construction, 72
       S.A. study abroad, 52
       Student exchange, 31, 53
       Students in secondary school to U.S., 65
       Teachers (volunteers), 56, 74
       Teaching methodology for preschool, primary, adult basic education, 22
      Training, 46
              Of church leaders, 7
              On the job exchanges, 61
              Materials,74
```

Engineering, 74

U.S. graduate study in psychology, 26

Workplace education, 36

```
Environment, 23, 36, 39
        Wilderness/natural resources, 32
 Gender issues (see Women)
 Mealth, 13, 20, 59
        AIDS education, awareness, 27
        AIDS prevention, 34
        Education/training for doctors/health care workers, 58
        Health care, 12, 16, 70
        Health and human rights, 61
        Health and organizational development, 36
        Health facilities, 68
        Health reform, 19
        Primary health care, 23, 24
        Veterinary science, 66
Human resource development
        Human infrastructural development, 73
        Human resource development/education, 16
Human rights, 3, 5, 10, 11, 12, 26
        Human rights/civil liberties/social justice, 20
        International human rights law. 57
        Law and human rights, 3, 19
        Legal services/legal rights, 21, 70
        Human rights education, 43
        Promotion of human rights, 40
        Protection of human rights of scientists, engineers, health professionals, 61
        Role of human rights lawyers, 40
        Strengthening local groups, 3
        Work on human rights, 58
Institution building/development, 26, 33, 73
       Between American Red Cross/South African branches, 26
       NGO strengthening, 34
       Technical assistance to NGOs and CBOs, 64
Institutional linkages, 45, 46, 48, 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57
International exchange, 30, 51
International politics, 27
Land rights, 54
Leadership
       Leadership training, 10
       Leadership programs, 73
       Training/leadership development 37
Legal aid, 74
Lobbying
       Support for sanctions/divestment movement, 1
       Support for a better U.S. policy towards South Africa/the region, 1
Local government
       Developing structures, 28
Media
       Videos, 17
       Print, 16, 58
Pelicy studies/analysis, 16, 51
Pepulation, 23, 34,
```

Poverty

Developing collaborative approaches to problems of poverty, 35

Prison reform, 9

Public policy, 19

International business, politics, foreign policy, economics, 42

Professional exchange

Facilitation of professional exchange, 69

Public administration

Public administration/public policy analysis, 49

Training in the U.S., 29

Reconciliation/race relations,

Justice and reconciliation, 10, 22

Racial reconciliation, 43

Race relations improvement through sports as catalyst, 4

Refugees

Refugees, migrants, displaced persons, 31

Scholarships for refugees, 38

Relief

Disaster relief, 9

Disaster relief/advocacy and reconciliation, 37

Relief and development, 67

Relief and rehabilitation, 6

Research, 52

Academic studies on South/southern Africa, 50

African-American, American-Indian education, 39

Interfaith issues, 47

Research linkages with South African universities, 55

Southern Africa, 55, 58

Sustainable development in Africa, 46

Urban/rural/regional development research, 54

Rural Development

Information on, 69

Demonstration projects in rural development, 23

Urban/rural/regional development research, 54

Self-help programs, 67

Seminars/conferences,

Convocations, 10

Itinerating speakers, 10

Social issues

Social justice, 9, 20, 47

U.S. organizing for social justice, 21

Supporting individuals initiating social change projects in a variety of fields, 60

Socially relevant programs, 9

Solidarity

Anti-apartheid films, videos, 17

Africa, anti-apartheid work, 10

Anti-apartheid movements/democratic organizations, 6

Anti-apartheid work with U.S. educators and students, 2

Defending rights of South African scientists, 18, 6

International solidarity, 39

Sport

As a catalyst for improved race relations, 4

Volunteer coaches for townships, 74

Teacher training

Curriculum development/teacher training, 73

Teacher training for educational reform, 60

Technical assistance, 46, 51

Community health in southern Africa, 31

Conflict management, 62

International development, research, training, 46

Technical assistance/training, 36

Technical services in formal/nonformal education planning/management, 23

Trade unions

Development, 24

Solidarity, 45

Work on trade unions, 58

Training

Public administration/other management/development issues in the U.S., 29

Skills training, 34

To community-based organizations in South Africa, 22

Urbanization

Community resource centers, 72

Governance, 72

Housing upgrading, 72

U.S. policy towards South Africa, 1, 4, 5

Vecational training

Technical/vocational education/training, 25

Vocational rehabilitation/training, 30

Welfare

Social welfare programs, 14

Women

Female human rights, 39

Female education/health/population/agriculture/energy, 22

Role of women in the media, 65

Self-help projects for women, 69

Women's access to communications/media, 39

Women in development, 33

Women's rights, 39

Work on women, 58

Youth

Demonstration projects on youth, 23

Street children, 34

Youth empowerment, 39

Youth leadership, 29

Youth services, 26

Youth services/community development, 28

List of participating organizations aiphabetically

	Page
Academy for Educational Development	
Aetna Life & Casualty Foundation	23
Africa Faith and Justice Network	13
Africa Fund	1
Africa News Service	58
Africa Today Associates (University of Denver)	16
African-American Institute	16
African-American Labor Center (AALC)	24
African Arts Fund	45
African Development Group	59
African Enterprise	13
African Medical Mission	58
African Medical and Research Foundation (AMREF)	59
Africare	24
Albert Kunstadter Family Foundation	25
American Association for the Advancement of Science	18
American Bar Association Fund for Justice and Education	40
American Business Initiative for a Free South Africa (ABIFSA)	41
American Chemical Society	1
American Committee on Africa	41
American Council on Education (ACE)	1
American Friends of NEST, Inc.	59
American Friends Service Committee	2
American ORT Federation	25
American Psychological Association (APA) American Red Cross International Services	26
American Working Theatre	26
America's Development Foundation	60
Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop (ABLWW)	26 60
Andrew W. Mellon Foundation	18
Ashoka: Innovators for the Public	60
Aspen Institute Congressional International Program	41
Association of Episcopal Colleges	41
Association for International Practical Training (AIPT)	61
Aurora Associates South African Higher Education Program	26
Baptist World Alliance	6
Bay Area Anti-Apartheid Movement	2
Boston College	45
Boston Globe Foundation	12
BP America	13
Bradley University	45
Brown University	45
California Newsreel	17
Cape of Good Hope Foundation	38

CARE	20
Carnegie Corporation of New York	18
Carnegie Council on Ethics and International Affairs	42
Cash Partners International	14
Catholic Relief Services (CRS)	23
CDR Associates	42
Center for Public Justice	27
Center for Racial Equality and Democratic Opportunity, Inc. (CREDO)	28
Charles Stewart Mott Foundation	19
Children's Television Workshop	17
Christian Peace Conference	6
Church of the Heavenly Rest	6
Citibank	14
Clark Atlanta University	46
Clark University Task Force for Sustainable Development	46
Clergy and Laity Concerned	28
Coca-Cola Foundation	12
Colgate-Palmolive Company	14
College of Wooster	46
Committee of Concerned Scientists Inc.	61
Committee for Health in Southern Africa	61
Community Development Institute	28
Conflict Management Group (CMG)	62
Conflict Management Initiatives	62
Consortium for International Development (CID)	46
Cornell University	47
Council for International Exchange of Scholars (CIES)	29
Council of International Programs (CIP)	29
Creative Response	62
Cummins Engine Foundation	12
Ecumenical Development Corporation	14
Education Fund for Southern Africa	38
Educational Testing Service	42
Educators Against Racism and Apartheid	2
Episcopal Churchpeople for a Free Southern Africa	2
Episcopal Church USA	7
Estee Lauder International, Inc	15
Fairchilde International Library Institute	42
First Baptist Church Capitol Hill	7
Ford Foundation	19
Friends of IDASA	63
Friends of SOS Children's Villages Inc	63
Fund for a Free South Africa (FreeSA)	64
Fund for Education in South Africa (FESA)	64
Funding Exchange	39
Genesis Foundation	19
Get Ahead Foundation USA	64
Global Fund for Women	30

Global Future Links	29
Goodwill Industries of America, Inc.	30
G.U. Volunteers in South Africa	64
Hamilton College	47
Hartford Seminary	47
Harvard Graduate School of Education	47
Harvard School of Public Health	48
Harvard/South Africa Fellowship Program (HSAFP)	48
Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation	19
IBM	16
Independent School South Africa Education Program (ISSAEP)	65
Indiana University	48
Interfaith Center on Corporate Responsibility	7
Institute of Current World Affairs Crane-Rogers Foundation	20
Institute of International Education (IIE)	30
Institute on Religion and Democracy (IRD)	43
International Book Bank, Inc. (IBB)	30
International Catholic Migration Commission (ICMC)	31
International Foundation	20
International Institutes on Peace Education	43
International Student Exchange Program (ISEP)	31
International Voluntary Services	31
International Wilderness Leadership (WILD) Foundation	32
International Women's Media Foundation	65
Intersect	32
Investor Responsibility Research Center (IRRC) South Africa Review Service	43
Iowa South African Scholarships, Inc. (ISASI)	32
Iowa State University	48
J.P. Morgan & Co.	16
J. Roderick MacArthur Foundation	20
John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University	49
Koinonia Southern Africa	2
	3
Lafayette College	49
Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law	65
Lawyers Committee for Human Rights	3
Luther College	49
Lutheran ChurchMissouri Synod	7
Mandela Freedom Fund	65
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)	49
McKnight Foundation	21
Medical Education for South African Blacks (MESAB)	66
Medical University of Southern Africa (MEDUNSA) Trust	66
Miami University	50
Michigan State University African Studies Center	50
Mills College	50

Mobility International USA	33
Morehouse College	50
Museum Research Associates	44
National Council of Churches (NCC)	8
National Council of Negro Women	33
National Democratic Institute for International Affairs	67
National Endowment for Democracy (NED)	67
National Jewish Community Relations Advisory Council	8
National Public Radio (NPR)	17
New Prospect Foundation	21
New World Foundation	21
New York/Klerksdorp Companion Diocese Committee	8
Northwestern University	51
Ohio State University	51
Ohio University Center for International Studies	51
Open Door Student Exchange	33
Operation Hunger Inc.	67
Organization of South African Americans and Canadians, Inc. (OSAAC)	68
Partners for International Education and Training (PIET)	33
Patrick and Anna M. Cudahy Fund	21
Peace Development Fund	21
Phelps-Stokes Fund	39
Population Services International (PSI)	34
Pratt Institute Center for Community and Environmental Development (PICCED)	51
Presiding Bishop's Fund for World Relief	9
Princeton University	52
Prison Fellowship International	9
Private Agencies Collaborating Together (PACT)	34
Progressive National Baptist Convention, Inc.	9
Reebok Foundation	12
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute	52
Research Triangle Institute	44
Riverside Church	9
Rockefeller Brothers Fund	22
Rockefeller Foundation	22
Rutgers University	52
Sakhisizwe Christian Ministries of South Africa	68
Salesian Missions	34
Samancor Foundation USA	68
Save the Children	34
Schering-Plough Corporation and Foundation	1.6
School for International Training (SIT)	52
Sister Cities International	35
Sisterhood in Support of Sisters in South Africa	69
Smith College	53
South Africa Education Fund. Inc.	40

South Africa Human Rights Campaign	3
South African Black Business Development Foundation, Inc.	6
South African Rural Development Support Program, Inc.	
South African Women Artists in Resistance	6
South Coast Foundation	4
Southern Africa Education Program	2:
Southern Africa Freedom Through Education (SAFTE)	10
Southern Africa Legal Services and Legal Education Project, Inc. (SALSLEP)	69
Southern Methodist University Law School	70 5:
Stanford University	5. 5.
State University of New York	
St. Barnabas College Fund, Inc.	53 70
Stewardship Foundation	22
St. James' Church	10
Synergos Institute	
Syosset International	35
-)	35
TEAMWORKSouth Africa	4
ThunderbirdThe American Graduate School of International Management	4 54
Tides Foundation	
TransAfrica	40
Transkei Foundation	4 70
Trinity Grants Program	
Tucker Foundation, Dartmouth College	10
1 de la	54
Unitarian Universalist Service Committee (UUSC)	71
U.N. Subcommittee on Southern Africa NGO Committee on Human Rights (N.Y.)	5
United Church of Christ and Disciples of Christ	10
United Mine Workers of America	45
United States International University	54
United Way International	36
University of California at Berkeley (UCB)	54
University of California at Los Angeles (UCLA)	55
University of Cape Town Fund (UCT Fund Inc)	71
University of Connecticut	55
University of Delaware	55
University of Hartford	55
University of Illinois	55 55
University of Iowa	56
University of Michigan South Africa Initiative	56
University of Missouri System	56
University of Missouri-Kansas City	57
University of Notre Dame	57
University of Notre Dame Law School, Center for Civil and Human Rights	57
University Scholarships for South African Students	71
Urban Foundation (USA) Inc.	72
U.S. Committee for Refugees	5
U.S. Committee for UNICEF (The United Nations Children's Fund)	72
U.S. Fund for Leadership Training in Southern Africa	73
U.S. Office of the World Council of Churches (WCC)	11
U.SSouth Africa Leadership Development Program	72

U.SSouth Africa Sister Community Project	73
US/Zululand Educational Foundation Inc.	74
Vanderbilt University	58
Washington Office on Africa	5
William and Flora Hewlett Foundation	23
W.K. Kellogg Foundation	23
World Conference on Religion and Peace (WCRP)	11
World Council for Curriculum and Instruction (WCCI)	44
World Education	36
World Learning Inc.	36
World Neighbors	74
WorldTeach, Inc.	74
World Vision Relief and Development (WVRD)	37
Worldwide Documentaries, Inc.	18
Yale University Southern African Research Program	58
YMCA of the USA	37

Glossary

AAI: African-American Institute

ABIFSA: American Business Initiative for a Free South Africa

ABLWW: Andover Bread Loaf Writing Workshop

ACS: American Chemical Society

AED: Academy for Educational Development

AIPT: Association for International Practical Training
AMREF: African Medical and Research Foundation

APA: American Psychological Association

BP: British Petroleum

CHISA: Committee for Health in Southern Africa
CID: Consortium for International Development
CIES: Council for International Exchange of Scholars

CLP: Carnegie Leadership Program CMG: Conflict Management Group

CPSA: Church of the Province of Southern Africa

CREDO: Center for Racial Equality and Democratic Opportunity, Inc.

CRS: Catholic Relief Services

CSSS: Center for the Study of Sport in Society

DRC: Development Resources Centre

EMRIS: Episcopal Mission Resource Information Service

EOC: Equal Opportunities Council ETS: Educational Testing Service

FILI: Fairchilde International Library Institute
FESA: Fund for Education in South Africa

FreeSA: Fund for a Free South Africa
G.U.: Georgetown University

HSAFP: Harvard/South Africa Fellowship Program

IAESTE: International Association for the Exchange of Students for Technical

Experience

IBB: International Book Bank, Inc.
IBM: International Business Machines

ICCR: Interfaith Center for Corporate Responsibility

IDASA: Institute for a Democratic Alternative for South Africa

IIE: Institute of International Education
IRD: Institute on Religion and Democracy
IRRC: Investor Responsibility Research Center
ISASI: Iowa South African Scholarships, Inc.

ISSAEP: Independent School South Africa Education Program

IVS: International Voluntary Services
IUCN: World Conservation Union

MEDUNSA: Medical University of Southern Africa

MESAB: Medical Education for South African Blacks

MIT: Massachusetts Institute of Technology

NACALD: North American Center for Active Learning Through Drama

NBA: National Basketball Association USA

NBPA: National Basketball Players Association USA

NCC: National Council of Churches
NCNW: National Council of Negro Women
NED: National Endowment for Democracy

NEST: New Eras School Trust

NGO: Nongovernmental Organization

NJCRAC: National Jewish Community Relations Advisory Council

NOCSA: National Olympic Committee of South Africa NOSC: National and Olympic Sports Congress SA

ORT: Organization for Rehabilitation Through Training

OSAAC: Organization of South African Americans and Canadians, Inc.

PACT: Private Agencies Collaborating Together

PICCED: Pratt Institute Center for Community and Environmental Development

PIET: Partners for International Education and Training

PSI: Population Services International PVO: Private and Voluntary Organization

RBI: Research Triangle Institute

SAEF: South Africa Education Fund, Inc.

SAEP: South African Education Program, sponsored by IIE

SAHEP: South African Higher Education Program
SAFTE: Southern African Freedom Through Education
SAIRR: South African Institute of Race Relations

SALSLEP: Southern Africa Legal Services and Legal Education Project, Inc.

SARP: Southern African Research Program (Yale University)

SCORE: Sports Coaches Overseas Relief Effort
UCB: University of California at Berkeley
UCLA: University of California at Los Angeles

UCT: University of Cape Town

UNETPSA: United Nations Education and Training Programme for Southern Africans

UNICEF: United Nations Children's Fund

USAID: United States Agency for International Development

USIU: United States International University

USSALEP: U.S.-South Africa Leadership Development Program
USSAS: University Scholarships for South African Students
WILD: International Wilderness Leadership Foundation

WCC: World Council of Churches

WCRP: World Council on Religion and Peace

WN: World Neighbors

WVRD: World Vision Relief and Development YMCA: Young Men's Christian Association